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®, UEd Tdhad e, U faeaq TRl Rie #ie ITaRH Hbad (M&H TIadsl w4
TESH | IERIAT THINTH SHERATE FTHT fSTSThT B TR T ARIHIT STHEED BigehaT 575
BT EF A6l (AT GRS TP STHIUIET WISEHT TS JETH T GV~ WEEad! § | gadel
AT AT TeApl (b AETaqUl SIS I TIHT TR AT [IIATEaId R I 578 BT
T AieAT M AT WAaT T8 S 997 TR it ahaus § |

798 AFEE AT ITFVEEHATE FAW. FTSH T4 T HAAT eTad+d faqq-Ted EOT Crane, MIV
W, Frild AFAEe qUT HATES TS T WIHPH § | WA AR 9& AT IR ¥ dTed
TEH HE ATH =T ehl G | fa=are M qWmgdr g T8 A BISUeHTH T
B I T TR T AR IFAHHIEEH! TSB! BIA HRT AT FRUTAT LT G WA el ASTH q4m
g qER AT AT IYFRVEE TS gk qHT RN TGRIUHN G | FHUHT AT I IS T EM
works BT FRE ¥ IIANA F1F TFI ASIDhSH! TIaTdd T S |

° ms‘r—ﬂmﬁw ] FAET (Hydro-Mechanical Works):

AT, BTESI-AFIHPA THIHT HIUAGTHN AT WA UG UPRAT ATHA 5 YU FFIAT ATSI=
e og ARTE 91, f. W 0% TWTE % A GRRIAT TRTH RET | RRT SMER ST T
IS, TF ¥ AVSTE(H AIY AT ATGYUh AT (el Tl dWMG HE T8I~ TRIADH T |
A T A2, TF T2, TS N TS T APTH G 74 o0 Acged! WATTHE Fbr TS
THHY AR WP B | TS T AN B SATTeA 9l TSTHEN TATH! ASTET T TFY TS FFI
S BORC BIASH FH THT T TZAPH T | ETES-HENTEA SHaRA IEE® UTgT Aqadl d7d
qIEY, SEheAd, U TET U GISUEEHl A FE T AT9Yah AT FeM X g dHd
HEAPH G | FTEgI-ABNTHA Lol <RI Aidehe he T Yefde TP FAAE T ATSAC NTETh!
ST BT el AR TTAT TR B | GHUHT ETESI-HeblHehel HTHeP! ETAdFHep! (AT Hika Q0 giaere
TH~ Al Fiiaies ATAE & |

o YHRY ATET AT G4l F14ee (Transmission line Works):

R0 BN HHATH TAG Aibe faA@ TR AR WA quivrEr it wied gRfRea sitate
waifaued . fa. & fafa 000 St [ AT FFhRTar TReE R | FERIAT SR I SR g
JHIRUT STEHHT Y FaT IAMEX ALY Y, a¢ TTARB! NI Wi T RISUSATRI HIH FHIT TRADD § AT
¥ FET AR WS T el Al febelifiex wiams el 9.4 Fpelifiazar ar a1 &1 0T G AgHebep]
B | AT, FIHTY T &AHT IWhT Ffohl TI2T AR GATh! T THT SATH AT Wbl & | GHuaT faeqa
JHRU AT GWT BT QY T B o ASqHH! JIiatid A Rdl S |

g, fafa= qeret TRy yafqens qearse TRt AR qer sifae S Hate wRka /o gfaerd
FTH AlFTH Jiara® AThad TRUH B | BIHS HeTATIR! Jbld, TIgd TIdT TR Twa1ew,
JETA AT TR AT T AT WRAT AW RS ASerem, WA ArAnier | smafd 3
QAT HIEATS, B3 ATATHAT HIT I+ ATATAT G, 891 @IATHT TUH HATIE 161 X AT Ha98
HTH AT, ARAATE ATATT g AGD! oIl TR [GhIcH AAE MG IIqehe TALHT Ah HTHT AT
WA IASE B | 8T GHIehl T fafaeT wfsarg ardr i =t o et sy
YHETETH] UTHTTHT Bivgd TS AU (HATTAT T faelieres G0 "erss ¥ 1 GUIAr F g
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feemAT FHTRT GOl eedATaTs aiETed TRUST B | SHARP! STHAT AT [aerer g SATherT TRYHT
HET FTIATH! (AT FHIAT WIS AT FAATHT THT TREH T | Bereaeyq AT Il gy T

I&q qTH F |

ATATAATRT FTieTeep AT (G IJeae ga fAfd % AT Ro50 AT TIRueT fort | wrier fafieet
forry afeeifaer arasie fasa framer smamrer famrfeer T s fator goifqens weaeer 9 AdTe
forea wiftrerRoraTe TwETEt 9 W€ amuer aiafia fafa 94w R0s0 R J s fior g
g1 T gd WRHT FHH T30 H S |

TR TRIAF AP (MSHIE F34T FT9e< (Initial Public Offering-IPO) :

79 FFETH AT (fR) F IRME Wi (e Sid gefad ST SEiie A fda
AT NERT I WU IFFT AEfeh AT HIVeears (ARG 06 TR 9% T, F23fre Jsmmar
TR AUTelEEATs fHfd 09 BTA[UN 9% T, ATASTAT THITAS ST AMfaareedrs MAfq 06 R 9¥
T I QEAATIRUETE fAfq 09 I o5 Y AR SiewisH w1 1 W fafeuy e frrafey o @
fafa R06R = 9% A IERIAT TUH RET | I FAT AT Wb TR o AT fAfa 06 I % T
AT qUaeTe fAfq 209 AT 9 T A1 TF FEIH TR TAMOR Fhdae T SoRAT HRIER
THT AEEH B |

FHNA AT FaGT4T Geateaa e wiasqar 1 9 #des :

)

R

HTArSTATR it fAtor ae=re TRAE g adr 37 TheeT FTHATE IenTarer | fad grafear fag
T |

Aurer faela Tfaeorer Ferr QIR STefagd ArSIHTaTe. ScTad fasa ARed THRIAT SiTgHe! AT gaedr
T Aeleas TR TERATHT FHAIH TRATE THI HAaTs A9 Faed TsRoreT aawaas T
ATaege et s sfaee SISt Tere ae | Aare faga wiitreRRer w@wer et afeer Swtas
YERY A159 ¥ TRIST 919 ABRAATIE® dod 9 FgdiT I 99 |

BT I-HepIFehel HIAP! Sichl TRl PIA I T IJTHEE AT FTAgeATs I9 g & o |qrer
SUHUT qRALHT FTHATS AT Aty fagiy grataear fag 99 |

EATTI HETHIRT SR 370 YoRH0T AT YTeh{Teh FehITg<elTs HEAAwIR T ATASTAT & AT sy qraenf-iqees
FA AT T, PIASRG @A T9T GRETHT (G99 &\ =1 |

AR ArfTE aT FEaiaE T

HIA ATFT AEINS qIT AN G4 Goaes a1 e vy Je 9 &1, Hebage aar
FRAPRATAT FEAEE A& AT YRPRPT FoAT, TeraiTa q97 =g gearer, fomqe fepr foramr, foregar e
HTART, JURT FsIT, et ITERPT FEATT AE a7 TAT ATATER HeATed, W (e a=mad, Te
AT, & ATy ¥ fed @ 1 Jurer faega wiitrep<or, AqTer T b, AT 87T TG GBI
AT AR TRH1A (MBI, AT (HATOT HHEAT Gere fHHor 3, @ o1l SATRFEsh! AT Tad
T FHEM, F91 GaTT T S qar i deamee, qRrAetErar snf qed T Hetauu a1 e
TR G |
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ToATE WATTAT HTPT BT T Hepl HRT

T9 FHEAD] FMIAEE ATAR & HHAID ATH FHgAE ¥ (FR) 91 T § (Th) @A qoarad
T Y (qf=) ST GouTeres AfAfT @bt | i ariie qrarursTeTe faxh g o doares St
I TS & WUHI ANAATHT eha T F=aTad ATATTS! (Hid 050 /0% /0% T MU J AR TF
FHINTH TAREAT AT T STl a9 FFIAIh] oTeeh (Meh TRUHT G | T T8 FFAAT qurder

THITATH! FoaTeeh AT Ll G | qufae
%. 4. TEATAT FSATAFET k& TEATAFHAT Y
9. | famraeeR B ool / AEAE T (qi= a1 qURUETETe)
| e R s RECIEE fafa RowRio4 105 AT TR
3 | R e RECIEET fafa R0uzi0¥9R =T R
¥, |Hedr w0 S RECIED] fafq Rozol0K10% AT YR
W [ oS s ey WA G FaTEd (I A TR

TY ATSE AT ATHRUEATITE FHFIATPl WIhRd (HARTARAHT T a7 AR g5 ST GoaTeThgeehl
fat= /i s

FIAAATS AAT TH & FET

U PR T IARTS IHRA AR I A9t UF, FAA, Hawes a1 = 7 SEaar g aeiee
T qREdT Sl STsTe Tag TR STt ATarsTAre! (AT qor oara-{T A / Tided 98 99
T |

<, TSATA, TRBISITH, ATHISal, STEIT TSI TSATRHA, ATe!, Iied, @I, THH, e AT TS
qTepicier Jepid, WETHI Teandl |18 qR1fehell, Sraenl Hed 3fg, Soha! rstavHT qig, fafraaaean afkeds
anfe enfdies / faeita #FRUEES 9f STAfasd ATASTeed! (e Jiaed 8T Iead |

ARET JERT TSB! AT PRAT [T AU GUSHT ATATSTHATeNe IeuTed g faara Foll farshier
FANY I g T |

STFETHT TRATHT ATF G ITTAT TSI e Fehe Icaw 378 (AT Hrf ol g7 @ ifew g |

AGTIIAT FRTAETHT T IREAT SoG WP Y A ST G« QAT TR
J9 HHAA NFRS (Nepal Financial Reporting Standards) HT9UE SHINTHG! faxig a4 e fqaxues
TAR T TP 3. . 09R /050 T Ui Fiel FTHINTH! faxira faa=or qar qikues § |

Agmderer yiqaeTar fafra sRerer aus e Rega, sfateer @ gemEee @ity geeras
qiufaaTe eamTRNur BT AT Wi GUReHT MR AEeded BEH =ATH G |

A F(SHIE T (ARIRT TR A
FHEIET AT AU ST & @bl T ARKTAIDT 97T G THUH! §aT ATHINT SATSThIGehl STaedT
TTHT |

VIR THT ATH AT TR TP IR WA, I NPT Apd qod, AN VAR TThal g7 ST o
AT FFA T TRBT AT IGH T G AR A% 9 q9fg 9 TR foair 18 s
TR&! THH AT THA AP DA HH fhat T 7Y |y & e :

T i T§ R09R1050 AT TH HEHIST FY AT BTH PRATE! G9T T THT TH S |
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famra anfife T FPET T AUDT GEEAF FEAPT FAARS! WG T A AP qfepr A=rar @
feafaer gREeeT ¢

TG FEAP AT FH e HFT ST | 9 HIArpl s aor foirr feafq o8 wigeemr swg
TRTHT G |

FHAT AT AAH GEAF FHAA AMAF THAT A TR TE FRAARET < QT AGMEAT FHD!
FRIARAT ATTH FY AT AREAT
TG A I F GETAE BT G | TG HEATS AT a9 06R /050 AT FEIT TR THE ATH

FRIER T AT FARAT FFOAR PRIAAT ATCH gVl IRade T IFqaaar ded qreerd, arh
AT Qe T e Yo faeawer qar d@r aF feordieme g ol g |

fama e aeaT FFEFHT ATHRAT NAEAEEN SIS SIqH TRTTH! STHAHRT |
forrar snftfer adwT FFBT TR FAREIETGRT FFIAIATS HA ATHHRT FUART AT |

e st o FwEr SouEE auT qEiteriEey fuEr e @ifieer faerer 3w
IR FREARAT o18s Jomw BB T QU FHHAT (oevare SOarel Ty TR STy

s a9 0% /050 HI ATATHAT I BT TG FFITh] FeTAaTel GoaTeieh qUqT UQNBRIETH A
@ica quieel THIN Wl § T [Ho18e HTe! TR SRISRHAT G @bl el & |
aqfaer
W, ® " R g&m P
& T AR 8 FoaTers - [SafhiTd-
aeAe (99905 femar
& R TR T@q ToATAF - [FEATTA-
yfataf, oifar @ ersgiuEr | ge=r  [43,3R,000 feam
fer.
A AR A ATl - [SATRITT
IO (9,¥4,%33 femar
A I Giqaet oo - [GEINT- fafq R0z0 @ oy TAHN TR
giafai, TT.aR.GA. FRhTEHR| 9 (949,33 fear  [afafaert Seeere afemmT e wwe |
g SHWIHIE fa.
AT T S AT - [ TRITT fafa 050 WTg o% AT FouTH
e [9,08,3% e [afufae Ssdare geumerwHa e &
HTH |
Y T ST e @A~ [fIER S forst (Serardieper qUT YARY ATEA)
eSO
forrar anfiier afaT oIl AR TRRIATESHT FY JoaTee q°T (9! ARTHH! ATATRES! ARBITT
@ FIRAT ITAH TRIEUH ATHAD SRR
Y YehIehl ATABN JqeTel THUT |

FEA AT TAR AR GRE TR AT ALY FTFT AR GRE T BROT, I WA F&r T Afeea
A 9T JAA VA GRT IRATIT FHAS AT WP T
FHHATS ST AR GRS TR |
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ATANE (=0 JUITelr Qa7 THTSHE T ACH | et farsar faor

FFIATB! ATANF [HAA JUITElT T T JHTEHIRI AT FRIAR T AT AT TIHT Foaree
Tl AT oareres |tafaer gt fafesr aHR gregramer fafaee wH=md Jar fafaawmasir R0, Finance
Administration Bylaws 2079 9T Finance and Accounting Manual 2079 SIA SRTFEATAT SATTH G |
fafraamaeiesa fifdse W o a8 qwa quaaT HEOE gourae Giafd, o IT-Fiafd T HEaRr
FALIAAE ATAITE HAEs AR T Al HAAAT LT S, |

ARG €T GOl qo 915 AST HEAT UF, 0%3 B TH1 18Y FHH Fooeed AAqH a8
TP AGIILALAT ATAIT TS T T QAT ST TF S[THAAT SRl /@l JUTedl qoaTa g9
TR ) |

FHEATHT AT, 09 /050 &l ARG [aid qAT AGT Gl YhaTee I (FMAAVRT AT HFeET
ATANF AQGIIRIERATE (AATHT AT QTN TRISTH G, |

FEHIBT ST, 9. 09 /050 HT faxiig qur onfie RS fFara fFaraer denfie Saraderresr =T,
WA J@TIET® S.A.R. Associates, Chartered Accountants GEITSTE AGTILIETIT TRISTH & |

forra e et o AT G o

forra enfier @, 09R /050 HT & AAWIT @ ALA FHeAT I @A §AT WA FHARI @o T
9,%9,3%,¥54 /- (LR Tb HRIe GG~ o@ B9 89X =R 4 Jaqf s9ar /), fer qwafaar wowr
T PE THH G PATAT FoaTa @9 T 9,¥5,08 45%/- (AR T HRIg ASTATGY oG A g9R 9=
T FAT AT AA) ¥ A3RTH AFTAT TR T FESET AT T ¥O9Y R /- (FERM: qa=iad arE 9w
TR U T AR $YAT AIA) T G WU WUH! B, Tl [9aR0T FraI{rrd ATAHIGRT ATRT AT
fearaaT S g g |

AT wfRfaET qeETE AHEe, fMeEed Wrw e qifestae, s qar i, @ afdfae
TRPT HW FRATEP! a0 T 9 Ifafar Bt g e 9 G femm

G gRAfaerr qeEsHr AT

% 9. AEgdEr Ifufaer ITHEe 9T T
9. |8 SR =AW B k) Toh I
A REEER s @ ToATAE qa
3 = afds O Jey-gfag FHATA (FITE)

T HFAIB] AGIIETT FAAITAT I8 AP GodTeleh ATy AT WAl YeIF T+ A&l § I ATfdE
T 06 /050 AT THAT THH &, 90,000 (FERTT: WL §IR FIAT AIA) HAT ST TRUH! G |

wETrderr fwfaer feger fawifa o gomee

T HHAIR WA d@IAEH S.AR. Associates, Chartered Accountants LTS AT, . 09 /050 H
A@TIAETT FHI T I T AT aMfeep i Faamurars wramie goaree qrafqare @b T
FAHTIAST AT TH AIARVAAT THE T TR G |

HEAIGT AT, q. R050/059 H AT¥E quT fadiia FRIARST @A A@IILLT Hd THHT AT fafieT
G I AP THATSH HeATEHhA T FH (HH FaAA T A@OAHE G€T1 S.AR. Associates,
Chartered Accountants ®T$ J@r<rerer qfafaen famiiva swfsw sreradiers e i amamRoresT
A faRIRE TRUPT G | FGIIL AIqHb] qRATHE Tod ATgig FX aed aive €. 9,39,000/-
(AR Th TG THbIZE e9R ¥9GT HIF) IJUered TR T fqohmia TiRuar 3 |
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AT, TIE AR, PR TG, FFATST ATHRT AIAEAT AT Fotpr afrepent e ar fist
YO B G, T AT ST YN FHATS FY T TS AT 9C A F
T FFIATH] GoATAF, a0 AT, BB THE, FFIAIET JTIRAT AT aT [Tl ATTehepl ATIGTR
a7 FoT e TEhT O H, HFAT a7 FOTST FEATH FFIAITS B T RIS Siehl THTHT |

TP, TaE JoATAd, FAP THE T9T TRASRIEeATS ST TRTP qiiesias, w=r aan
feremar @ :

e A R0 /050 [T FFHIGRT J=oToH ATATTH S5h TT AIT IJYRIT oAb JTHETATS IT
IPATTAT IUTEIT AT THT TR THIT T, §,0%,000 /- (&R T A1 1 FR IUAT ATF) HAT ST TRIFTHT
B ¥ HHIHIHT YHE FRAPN ARIehceTs TS T 3w AT THT T AT 3. &%, RY,333.3¥ /- (T8RP
TUGE A =Y g9R G 9T Afqd AT =NG9 IHT A AT ATFH AGADT THH . 95,3¥ 950,00/ -
(reRf: IR &M A9 TR AT 9T AN FYAT AMA) HIT T g THA 3. Y95 L 03.3¥ /- (&R
AT A IV W Ui § Preey AT faw I\ A7) SR e § )

T qRRTAT il RPr ATHLD A ¢
BETOTEEN 9 HEIer ey STHIeT Foraor TRept S |

THT Y] FHH T @RT TRA 340 ¢

FHEAT AT R0%3 T THT ¥ THINH AfAF T 09 /050 AT FFAERT IR TIT 319 A7 THIRES
$.3,09,50,333.08/- (AR qF HAS TF W@ IS &R g 99 d59 g7 Iwales 4G AMA) THA
RIS I AR @RE TTH &

qafaer
% 9. Fofae faaRm FRARP! HH Fnaa
9 |[FFER 3,30,400.00
K B 3,%0,293.40
3 | HET ITH 3,¥3,¥00 %%
¥ |[RRTER gur IueRr 9,23,¥9,¥90,094
Y [FERr g -
AT.T. 0R /050 AT HTH THT GRT R,09,%0,3%3.%9

THT QY THIH TG FHAT 09 AU FRIARS! 9410
FEAT YT THT Q0% THINTH F FRIGR THCH |

T quT WA A THH GoadeE aniae IaagTa T gAareq 94 64 ¢
oaTeieh [fAfTer ST aTiier giqaaTaT TReslt 9% gems I v SR 999 99 @ A B |

I AEAYAF FET
FHATS ATRAS (e RId 93 . a7, Ied &THATHl HeF THIR TATaad ATAISTATR! (AT THTSTART AT
AU gSEAE o . @ SN < Al S f. qur e o1g. TH. 3. S . # QE—sEEngAr g
2T Jehgel THEUT fafq 004 AT 9 T WuHr FefaiTERer b Bt fa FwbiaT gur fAafg joz0
g % T IAAT TR FEA FER ¥.2,%%,55,00,000/- (FERM: A 3 I FIE ASTE aE@
ATT) THH Bl (AT TRUH G | T TeH FFAT &1 GF 3. 5,39,9'9,90,03 /- (&AL 35 o7
THFPSY A€ 9 1T IO R i T IATANAY 3GGT A1) Boll A ITANT TRET T | a1, &rel
TH EYST AT X b1l Fied FPAERT & 99,53,33,6%,9R9/- ($ERrf: Tar o« Pt a1 sy
AT YT EWR AT T FeTes SUAT ATA) THH AT I AZGhb! G |
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YS! FHAT ATHIT T AN T 451 AT GLATTF FHEH! TAEAEEaIE TITHT <. R,33,39,10,000/-
(ereRf: g2 ol AFT HAE IS AT I EAR FYAT W), FHART SR ATIT HEIThT FHATIEEATT
. 9%,%%,3%,000/ - (FERAT WE IS FIG @@ IF=d g9 AT AMA) T Areioiives MEbreHgRT qrfees
Y P, F2RTe ASTTEHAT ATRT AU, AR T AT FATH! 3, 53,39,%%,000/ - (e Prardy
FAE THTE A@ I59 gA AA) IHEH AT AT ASGDBT G | P A9re fgara e
frararaeiieh e F @R Ardwie AR Fepe adr aiewis T fafq 06k 2T 0 a1E AU W@E
TR fatidsHT giasa IR @Rg fahiel FRER I8 STReH g |

FHEAIS T PTHIR / FHATAESH! BIAATD! Io0 o, I&TdT, e ¥ fedqers 98a s aet ydies
a9 JS AT AT GRTETHT TRTae b T i feer & ¥ 91 @rd R sraera e ek 8§ |

FA gt O faw aatae aaaer e s Tasrer srad, 9« frda |98, J9e
Fr eI T TRPRATET HehaeeAT FRT9T T4 faarues Fafia Ta@r Tde 9T § |

FAAAT AT T 4TS,
9 FTATAT FHATH] oA AT FPIATR ATATSTATRT AT TAT fqabraaT Touer a1 qRieT Tqo fiieae q@anT
TATIT g TFU JRABRATAT TR T IREHI (T T Afchesqia gaaafg & Fawal = T =M |

ACTHT, THUl IARGAT FEIIHIEEEATs AT T HFIAIG] godrad Aiquid I@raq U Ig9Td, favara ¥
eI AT B1feeh g A9 S FoaTeies AATERT G HAIGAHTT SAR T ATHIGADT AT TS
T |

gqi< |

AP qrAafaer apare

AT/ ToeATTH ) AIR ~Arar
i R050/05/3% CECIE D
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grtrAr fafeer qaR erEgumar fafres®r farua+ Aerpmase awe
AETIOEEH! qfdqasT

fa<ha fae=or IaRe wfqass

AGIIeTHH AT

grder arfaer fafew qoR SRR fafade® ad@mg ToRT oWg 39, 050 (95 JATE 033)
# fadra feadfier faazu, @ifs fafam gwra awswr arer S faawo, o= fasqa g
faarur, SETEAT WUB aRadTHT fqaRer T 9T gATE fAeRw ud o Hfdge adqr a@rawEt
foofresar Sraradierer Y & 1

grel aaHT FifAT fAafes AR gRgTar [afded! faxia faawvese smurg 39, 050 (9% TS
F AP HATYT AT I<H AAIIRT ATHT ¥ 7L Ya@H! A9t fa<ia gfgaeaa ey

R0

Furd Fergor e

AGTIIETEE TTHT ATERES

eftaea  fadiag [aavuesr G@raRe v giaadaradierasl Faeeiidea’ @USHT Jooid TRUBT & | &THT
HFATETE ‘ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ ¥ A9qrerdT fadira

feraurpr Sr@maferor ¥ rEfeaa o araR dfed AHER WA @ T I FawdT AT ICANs
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants’ AR gl gTHT guReada fHare
mﬁ[mwﬁmmmwﬂmumwmwmmwmﬁ

Zl|

|GIAAUH &I 99 (Key Audit Matters)

AEIILTORT Hed  faud (Key Audit Matters) 8% &1 fa9des g4, I[7, 8THI Se¥HI, HFAThl TH
ATT. BT AQGTIAIDT AT Fag=aT afg qqqo el fau | cae favgssars i fqaeoesaet
AT FEAHT quT Al fFaRoEs IUT el TF gqr3T FHHT FElgE U@l @ 7 AT
TGO Hed  fauaer ©IuT (U W S |
.9 dEIee e fawa

q. FHqd FERT T Frafor Jr=TAIwE WEArT a9 r
FGreT

Jar wgfaaa  =azarAr JFRIC

SETgeTEET afatear
qAT AGITR! qfesTor GFharer Tra=aw1

12 & 93mur

FwqfgeedT  OREteET  @=res (Operator) @ | O
ARIPRETS IREISTAT dETaE®] Grid, T IUBT ( | o grfiear  fAuiw  a@raE gEfad

At ¥ 9tRaeE @Rl 7 HETsd
R |

o EIG  uwifafus  wrrAeTETAEEIRT
galfors Ul fAmioresadl o gmta

PPE) &I ®9YWT ATl a9 Ofedd | dgd9R,
WWWWWIFRIC
12 @ Rt O @ Reawd qatar a9 aeget
IFART SAraA (who]e of life assets) @t @f
ArESE-fAeTT AT ge  wEe dEa WEnT
fe=g | AEAEr, MWWWW

Je @i Arga (Intangible Assets Model) @ afeaaa wHrsT Tt ‘
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SAR.

ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Limited (the
“Company™), which comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), and
the statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards arc further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAN’s
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

1.

Recognition of Intangible Assets and
construction revenue

IFRIC 12 on Service Concession arrangements
provides that thc Operator’s right over the
infrastructure assets cannot be recognized as
property, plant and equipment (PPE) of the
operator. Accordingly, the hydropower project
being developed by the company is withing
the scope of IFRIC 12 as infrastructure is used
in a public-to-private service concession
arrangement for its entire useful life (whole of
life assets). Accordingly, intangible asset
model is applicable to the project being
operated by the company as the SMTHL, as
the company being an operator, rcceives a
right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. A right to charge users of a public
services is not an unconditional right to
receive cash because the amounts are
contingent on to the extent that public uses
the services.

These _concession arrangements set out rights

Our audit approach regarding verification of
process of income recognition included:

a. Wce understood and evaluated the controls
and processes over the recording of
expenses related to construction cost.

b. We reviewed the progress report in relation
to construction as certified by technical
consultants.

c. We reviewed the contracts, for various
construction activities under the project to
ensure whether cost booked are in line with
contract or not.

d. We also assesscd the process of recognition
of revenue in respect of service concession
arrangements to ensure that same is in line
with IFRIC 12.

T+97714420807 /08 /1C F+387714440528 Einfo@sar.com.np
Address 64 Bishal Basti "Ka", Bishal Nagar. GPO Box 4585, Kathmandu, Nepal
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and obligations rclated to the infrastructure
and the services to be provided to the public
user through Nepal Electricity Authority. The
right to consideration gives risc to an
intangible asset and accordingly, the
intangible asset models has to be applied for
recognition of cost of the construction.

As a part of our risk assessment, we have
considered process of recognition of
intangible assets in respect of service
concession arrangement and recognition of
construction revenue as per IFRIC 12 on
Service Concession arrangements as Key
Audit Matter.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
cxpected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management,

s Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continuc as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are vequired to draw attention in our auditor’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures arc inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Il 3t anffes AremRURIeN (3M.a. 20©</0co) || m
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes pubic
disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse conscquences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Company Act, 2063

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the Company were
adequate for the purpose of the audit; the financial statements including the statement of financial position,
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of
cash flows including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been
prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063, and they are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company; and the accounts and records of the Company are
properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we
observed the business of the Company was conducted satisfactorily, and the Company's transactions were
found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and
the cases where the board of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary
to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company or committed any misappropriation of the

funds of Company. _
Zes0Clatee

Lt

Aman Uprety
Partner

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: December 11, 2023

UDIN No.: 231220CA00451SYUmc
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SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDROPOWER LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at Ashad 31,2080

Amount in NPR

Particulars Note Current Period Previous Period (Restated)

Assets

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 4.20 66,044,773 58,663,796

Intangible Assets 4.21 10,115,326,492 6,375,404,483

Deferred Tax Assets 4.14 575,133 670,290

Total Non CurrentAssets . 10,181,946,399. . 6,434,738,569

Current Assets

Advance and Receivables 4.7 326,030,727 793,431,811

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.10 604,806,976 174,322,507

Other Financial Assets 4.8 30,885,781 31,316,375

Other Current Assets : 49° 3,039,220 3,113,541

Current tax assets 413 3,323,055 2,487,832

Total Current Assets 968,085,758 1,004,672,066

Total Assets:Shppan s alim it il L e . 11,150,032,157 .. 7439410635

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share Capital 4.11 3,332,497,000 2,499,375,000

Other Equity

Retained Earnings 4121 (75,118,831) (31,040,368)

Other Reserves 4.12.2 944,014 565,538

Total Equity 3,258,322,183 2,468,900,170

Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Non current Borrowings 4.15 7,125,152,564 4,475,365,844

Other Non-Current financial liabilities 4.16 630,633,512 353,218,422

Provisions 4.17 1,508,730 1,355,080

Total Non- Current Liabilities 7,757,294,806 4,829,939,346

Current Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities

Current Borrowings 4.18.1 - 97,599,980

Other Financial Liabilities 4.18.2 133,443,156 34,901,570

Other Current Liabilities 4.19 972,011 8,069,568

Total Current Liabilities 134,415,167 140,571,119
- |Total Liabilities 7,891,709,973 4,970,510,465

Total Liabilities and Equity 11,150,032,157 7,439,410,635

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

-

CA. Aman Uprety
Partner

S.A.R Associates
Chartered Accountants

Dr. Jugal Bhurtel Shiv Kumar Basnet
CEC Director

N
Apar Neypane uchi joshi Binaya Ktinaf Shrestha
Director Director Chairman
/‘:)_9

Gy,

-
Braj Bhusan Chaudhary
Director

Date: 2080 08¢ 2§

Place: Kathmandu
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SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDRO POWER LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the period ended Asadh, 2080

Amount in NPR

Particulars Note Current Period Pr?;?sl:; tl;:l;l()d
Revenue(Construction) 4.1 3,739,937,829 2,251,044,164
Cost of Sales(Construction) 4.2 3,739,937,829 2,251,044,164
Gross profit - =
Administrative and Other Operating Expenses 43 35,261,245 58,469,174
Other Income 394,100

Profit From Operation {34,867,145) (58,469,174)
Financial Income 4.4 5,568,154 292,882
Financial Costs 4.5 - -
Profit before tax {29,298,991) {58,176,292)
Income Tax Expense

Current Tax 4.6 - -
Deferred Tax [ncome/(Expense) 4.6 31,002 1,579,441
Profit For the Year (29,267,989) (56,596,851)
Earnings per Equity share of Rs.100 each

Basic Earnings Per Share (1.06) (2.26)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (1.06) (2.26)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

LA

Dr. Jiigal Bhurtel Shiv Kumar Basnet

Wtha
AM(Finance)

CEO Director
Apar Neupane Ruc‘@ Bingaﬁ(fim\ar Shrestha
Director Director Chairman

gt
BfarBRusan Chaudhary
Director

Date: 2.080+0Q. 26

Place: Kathmandu
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CA. Aman Uprety
Partner
S.A.R Associates
Chartered Accountants




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For the period ended Asadh, 2080

Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Period Prf(el\;:’o;:tl;zr)lod
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit (29,267,989) (56,596,851)
Adjustment for:
Amortisation 15,820 15,820
Depreciation 12,779,247 10,609,054
Leave Provision - -
Deferred Tax 95,157 (1,567,883)
Prior period (expense)/income - 11,268,345
Tax Paid -
Cash Flow from Operating Activities Before Changes in
Working Capital e (16,377,766) (36,271,515)
Cash Flow from Changes in Working Capital
(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Assets 467,070,776 (336,500,704)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current & Non Current Liabilities 271,791,265 174,142,688
Cash Flow from Operating Activities _ 722,484,276 (198,629,531)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
(Increase)/Decrease in Work in Progress
(Increase)/Decrease in Intangible Assets (3,739,937,829) (2,251,044,165)
(Capitalisation)/(Purchase) of Fixed Assets (20,160,224) (33,252,389)
(Increase)/Decrease in Investments _ = -
Cash Flow on Investing Activities (3,760,098,053) (2,284,296,554)
Cash Flow from Financial Activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings 2,649,786,720 2,467,839,022
Advance towards Share Capital - -
Issuance of Share Capital 818,311,527 166,625,000
Cash Flow from Financial Activities 3,468,098,246 2,634,464,022
Total Cash Generated in the Year 430,484,469 151,537,937
Opening Cash and Bank Balances 174,322,507 22,784,570
Cash and cash equivalent at The End of The Year 604,806,976 174,322,507
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date L530Ci7,°

W —
Mtha r. jugal Bhurtel Shiv Kumar Basnet

(Finance) CEO Director

W .
Apar Neupdne Ruchi Joshi E Bin%‘r(smesrha
Director Director \ & 2z / Chairman
/’_;,ﬁ
i
Braj Bhuﬁ-Chaudhary
Director

CA. Aman Uprety
Partner

S.A.R Associates
Chartered Accountants
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SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDRO POWER LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the period ended Asadh, 2080

Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Period Previous Period
Profit for the year (29,267,989) (56,596,851)
Gain/(loss) on Actuarial valuation of defined benefit liability 504,635 46,231
Total other comprehensive income 504,635 46,231
Income tax income /(expense) relating to components of (126,159) (11,558)
other comprehensive income -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 378,476 34,673
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (28,889,513) (56,562,178)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date

’ e " /';"\f‘[.-_-,- S aﬂ,
. ash Shrestha Dr. Jugal Bhurtel Shiv Kumar Basnet CA. Aman Uprety

AM(Finance) CEO Director Partner
S.A.R Associates
W Chartered Accountants
Apar Neupane Ruchi Joshi Bin%smestha
Director Director Chairman
’ﬁ-f;%
< 8.\
¥ \\{-. \
W (7: T g
Braj Bh/;:n’aaudhar ' g"\a. 0;'1/.
raj Bhu y Q:, y
Director KATOOP

Date: 2.090.08.2¢
Place: Kathmandu
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SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDRO POWER LIMITED
Kathmandu, Nepal
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at Asadh 31,2080

4.1 Construction Revenue Amountin NPR
. . Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Middle Tamor Hydropower Project 3,739,937,829 2,251,044,164
Total 3,739,937,829 2,251,044,164
4.2 Construction Cost Amount in NPR
3 . Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Middle Tamor Hydropower Project 3,739,937,829 2,251,044,164
Total 3,739,937,829 2,251,044,164
4.3 Administrative and other operating expenses Amount in NPR
i . Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Staff Salaries & Allowances(See note 4.3.1 below) 15,736,465 14,440,257
Depreciation Charges 8,079,406 7,933,724
Foreign Exchange fluctuation Loss/(Gain) 4,715,194 29,183,390
Office Rent 869,400 930,945
Fuel & Lubricants 864,113 463,325
Meeting Fee 619,120 239,120
Actuary Fee 32,575 32,575
Advertising and Publicity 49,268 42,854
AGM Expenses 431,308 386,331
Audit Expenses 31,297 26,115
Audit Fee 124,300 124,300
Amortization 15,820 15,820
Business Promotion Expenses 307,147 338,188
Communication Expenses 342,784 143,428
Computer & Software Maintenance Expenses 149,264 84,059
Consultancy Fee - 11,300
Donation Expenses 40,000 B
Electricity/Water/Cleaning 78,634 57,148
Hospitality expenses 184,601 107,798
Housekeeping 7,511 27,660
[nsurance & Taxes 64,300 105,660
Leasehold Expenes 31,518 72,982
Meeting Expenses 161,513 94,313
Membership Fees & Renewal 35,000 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 3,300 1,250
Occupational Health & Safety Expenses 19,324 16,710
Office consumable goods 49,351 23,543
Porter/Helper/Temporary Wages 10,111 12,122
Printing & Stationary 182,448 173,251
Repair & maintenance Others 171,743 63,425
Repair & Maintenance Vehicle 256,514 246,190
Security Guard Expenses 372,839 369,265
Staff Lunch/Picnic/Sports 714,290 522,458
Share Management expenses 300,000 -
Training and Seminar 61,040 3,390
Transportation & Fares 49,025 10,685
Vehicle Parking Expenses 7,625 5,330
Vehicle Renewal and Taxes e 82,300 81,500
Postage/Air Document /¢"‘qu - 8,664
Bank Commission & Charges /,) & N 10,797 7,624
(ﬂ P \ ., Total 35,261,245 56,406,697 |
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4.3.1 Staff Salaries & Allowances Amount in NPR
. ) Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Basic Salary 5,871,200 6,722,775
Allowances 7,066,991 5,528,005
SSF 20% HO 1,174,240 1,105,601
Dashain Allowances 864,512 450,295
Leave Expense Provision 406,222 408,808
Leave Pay Expenses 279,284 184,436
Over time Allowance 2,943 10,477
Staff Insurance 71,073 29,860
Total 15,736,465 14,440,257
4.4 Financial Income Amount in NPR
. . Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Income From Interest 5,568,154 292,882
Total 5,568,154 292,882
4.5 Finance costs Amount in NPR
. . Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Finance cost - -
Total - -
4.6 Income tax expense Amount in NPR
. A Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax Income/(expense) 31,002 1,579,441
Total 31,002 1,579,441

¥, . ‘
W

Il et anfifes AremRuUan (3ma. 20e</0co) |l




Q(../\U.TI,\W! ~

€el'SLs i [ . T (SQLH]IquIT]) / SIRSSV A | PaLdfo(] JaN
(6s1°921) swoou] daIsuayIdwo)) S
T00°1¢€ SIUOWIIRIS SSOT puk J1}01
tul pastuodaa (Isuddxq)awodu] Xe | paaayiaq s1edaf sty
067°0L9 (SA[1qEIY) SISISSY XB L PIJIII( 18I N SNOIAdL]
€EI'SLS 1€5'00€°T SISISY0P  SHP'SGE TP 0807 PRYSY IS[€ uo st (£NIqui)/s)assy xe | paL( eloy,
056°L61 %S¢ 108°16L SIS'I89°0F  E1L'688°6€ aoueeq $1$35sY 9]1qi8ueiu] pue juowdinby 7 e “Aiadosg
€81'LLE %S¢ 0£L°80S°1 - 0£L°80S°] ARG 10) UOISIADI

£103 23udIoyI([ Atrrodwd g

cerol T 7T T NN THNE S e W T S i) 5195 e oL

uoHEINIE) XBL PaIII( 1'9'p
0807 ‘I€ PEYSY pIpuad Jeaj ayy 104
TedaN ‘npueunyiey

JALIATTHIMOd OHAAH HOWY.L A'TAJIN YIWINVS

(8ss'11) awoou| sasuoyasdwo?) Y10
..Iu 1P¥6LS 1 SIUWIBIRIS $SO7] puB NJOI{
ﬂ 1t pasiu302da (asuddx7])AWodU] XR |, PIIYJI(] SIRIK SIy |,
m (€65°L68) (SOUIQRITY) SISISSY XR ] POJIJA(J 18I L SNOIAIL]
2 067°0L9 651189 v0T'869'9€  SOT'LTL'OE 6L0T PBYSY PUZE U0 St ({NN1qeIT)/sassy Xe ] PaLId( 1e10y,
m 0TS°1¢€E %ST 6L0°9Z€°1 v07'869°9€  STITLE'SE $15985Y 0[1q13uru] pue Juowdinbg 3 jueyq “Aiodoid
uﬂ. 0LL'8EE %ST 080°SS€l - 080°6S€‘1 9AE37T] 10j UOISIAOI(
N . 140§ 92ud13)1 (] Kvodwa ],
m (OnnqErpassy oy (AN iqErAess oY fiow v I R ]
s Xe], ']9q Xl . g Bl : ; g Xe)  Builaig) yoog ; i sIgnoILIEg
[} I
=]
-
3
=

s

[l| 3St affes ArEmRUIaT (3M.d. 20e:/0to) ||




sammal Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd.

SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDRO POWER LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at Asadh 31,2080
4.7 Advance and Receivables
A Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Advance to Contractor 273,423,857 701,799,495
Advance for Land Purchase 22,887,556 23,515,886
Advance to Others 21,431,531 22,499,856
Advance to Staff 797,118 1,574,717
Advance for TL ROW Compensation 1,382,168
Business Advance to Staff 2,039,790 1,191,585
Receivables from others . 1,368,707 39,650,272
Advance to Sub Contractor 2,700,000 3,200,000
Total 326,030,727 793,431,811
4.8 Other Financial Assets
Current other Financial Assets
Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Cash Margin 29,953,581 30,384,175
Custom Margin 932,200 932,200
Total 30,885,781 31,316,375
4.9 Other Current Assets
i i Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Margin Deposit 2,490,000 2,490,000
Miscellaneous Deposit 40,000 40,000
Prepaid Expenses 897 140,478
Prepaid Insurance 508,323 443,063
Total 3,039,220 3,113,541
4.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
. . Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Sanima Bank Ltd. 222,377,940 140,289,708
Nabil Bank Ltd. 374,915,000 10,601,169
Laxmi Bank Limited (Taplejung) 2,499,374 64,960
Laxmi Bank Limited. 2,892,375 20,577,748
Siddhartha Bank Limited. 1,544,404 1,538,087
Global IME Bank Limited 257,564 224,783
Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited. 51,000 51,000
Nepal Investment Bank Limited. 269,319 975,052
Total 604,806,976 174,322,507

TRES AL
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SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDRO POWER LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at Asadh 31,2080
4.11 Share Capital Amount in NPR
. A Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Shares as at 1st Shrawan 2,499,375,000 2,332,750,000
Add:New issue 833,125,000 166,625,000

Add: Adjustment

Add: Bonus Shared Issued
Add: Addition this year
Add: Right Shared Issued
Add: Calls in Advance
Less: Calls in arrears
Closing Balance

3,000
3,332,497,000

2,499,375,000

4.11.1 Reconciliation of No. of Shares

Amount in NPR

) N Previous Period

Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Ordinary Shares as at 1st Shrawan 24,993,750 23,327,500
Add:New issue 8,331,250 1,666,250
Add: Adjustment -
Add: Bonus Shared [ssued -
Add: Addition this year -
Add: Right Shared Issued -
Add: Calls in Advance -
Less: Calls in arrears 30
Ordinary Shares as at 31st Ashad 33,324,970 24,993,750
4.12 Other Equity 2,079.80 2,078.79

4.12.1 Retained Earnings

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Current Period

Previous Period

(Restated)
Opening Retained Earnings (31,040,368) 14,857,083
Profit/(Loss) for the year (29,267,989) (56,596,851)
Prior Period Adjustment - 11,268,345
Adjustment due to changes in Agreement - 1,493,532
Issue Management Expenses (14,810,473) (2,062,476)
Total (75,118,831) (31,040,368)

4.12.2 Other Reserves

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Current Period

Previous Period

(Restated)
Actuarial reserve 944,014 565,538
Total 944,014 565,538
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SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDRO POWER LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at Asadh 31, 2080

4.13 Current Tax Assets / Liablities

Amount in NPR

Previous Period

Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Income Tax Liabilities - -
Advance Tax 3,323,055 2,487,832
Net Tax Liability 3,323,055 2,487,832

4.14 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ LIABILITIES
4.14.1 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Amount in NPR

Previous Period

Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Deferred Tax Liabilties - -
Total - -
4.14.2 Deferred Tax Assets Amount in NPR
. i Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Deferred Tax Assets 575,133 670,290
Total 575,133 670,290
Non current Borrowings
Non Current Financial Liabilties
4.15 Non current Borrowings Amount in NPR
. i Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 1,187,029,823 751,213,336
Nabil Bank Ltd. 1,192,586,638 755,855,192
Global IME Bank Ltd. 1,189,740,534 753,916,997
NMB Bank Ltd. 932,315,267 588,879,914
Agricultural Development Bank Ltd. 748,026,195 473,496,022
Laxmi Bank Ltd. 751,666,127 476,471,769
NCC Bank Ltd. 749,003,243 438,240,389
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 374,784,737 237,292,225
Total 7,125,152,564 4,475,365,844
4.16 Other Non-Current financial liabilities Amount in NPR
. . Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Retention Money Payable Long Term 630,633,512 353,218,422
Total 630,633,512 353,218,422
4.17 Provisions Amount in NPR
. i Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)
Employees Leave Fund 1,508,730 1,355,080
Total 1,508,730 1,355,080
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4.18 Other Financial Liabilities
4.18.1 Current Borrowings

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd.

Amount in NPR

Previous Period

Particulars Current Period (Restated)

Bridge Gap Loan - 97,599,980
Total - 97,599,980

4.18.2 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Amount in NPR
] . Previous Period
Particulars Current Period (Restated)

Actuary Fee Payable 12,251 110,263
Audit Fee Payable 122,650 122,650
Leave Allowance Payable 3,054,526 13,618
Office rent Payable 92,799 50,239
Overtime Allowance Payable 170,128

Payable to Contractors 107,214,108 204,136
Payable to Others 21,245,630 32,391,553
Payable To Promoters 86,329 86,329
Staff Payable 102,173 34,007
Retention Money Payable 1,342,563 1,079,688
Payable to Associate Company - 758,088
Meeting Allowance Payable - 51,000
Total 133,443,156 34,901,570

4,19 Other Current Liabilities Amount in NPR
. . Previous Period

Particulars Current Period (Restated)

Withholding Tax Payable 56,192 6,434,627
Remuneration Tax Payable 385,244 1,080,796
Social Security Fund Payable 528,701 528,701
Reverse VAT Payble 1,874 16,864
Social Security Tax Payable - 8,580
Total 972,011 8,069,568
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SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDRO POWER LIMITED

Kathmandu, Nepal

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended Ashad 31, 2080

4.20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Amount in NPR
Compuler Furniture, Ofﬁce Ry Mechanical

f?r‘“ (_:ulars o = ~ &Equipment VEMEEY Li Equipment ye'roﬂmﬁﬁl

Gross Yalue (Prevnous Period) ) _ _— o —

'AtAshad End 2078 — 10,764,302 34,728,995 12,159,639 57,652,936

Additions 1,337,037 9,045,000 22,224,522 32,606,559
This Year adjustment/written off - - -

Accumulated Depreciation

AtAshad End 2078 10T 3,857,784 13,889,209 113,239,651 11 20,986,644

Depreciation charged to profit & loss for the year 1,917,498 5,028,046 988,181 7,933,725
Depreciation charge capitalized 447,278 2,228,052 2,675,330

Disposals A = - -

had End 2079 15,775,282, 19,364,533 16,455,884 131,595,699

Gross Value (Current Period)

/At Ashad End 12,101,339, 13,77 0,259,495
Additions 812,814 - 19, 347,410 20,160,224
Disposals L . - .

‘AtAshad End 2080 914, 5 , 10

Accumulated Depreciation

At Ashad End 2079 5,775,282, 19,364,5 455,884 - 699
Depreciation charged to profit & loss for the year 1,664,399 4,524,070 1,890,937 8 079 406
Depreciation charge capitalized 357,823 4,342,018 4,699,841
Disposals - R - =
‘At Ashad End 2080 e IR ,439,681 L 24,246,425 M 12,688,839 L 44,374,946,

4.21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Amount in Rs.
=53 - — - T
Particulars  Computersoftware com:esslonif,
s — " - e e e = i G ATTADIGETEDES

At Ashad End 2078 (Prenous Penod] 79,100 4-,124-,344,499

Additions - 2,251,044,164

Dlsposals

At Ashad End 20797 79, mpm 375,388, 6¢

Accumulated Amornzahon

AtAshad End 2078 L T o s 47,460 [ S el -

Additions 15,820

Disposals g = -
At Ashad End 2079 ' [ y niEr 63,280 ) el Soasrs Ll

At Ashad End 2079 (Current Period) 79100  6375388,663

Additions - 3,739,937,829
Disposals -

AtAshad End 2080 i 79100 101 115,325 492

Accumulated Amortization . - - . i

At Ashad End 2079 - e el EWELY. o it (s, 2

Additions 15,820

Disposals -

Prior periods Adjustments - -

At Ashad End 2080 sl SR SRS 79, 100 IR N
Net book value:

At Ashad End 2079 15,820  6,375,388,662

At Ashad End 2080 - 10115326492

Il st anffes ArEmREURIaT (3M.a. 20e</0co) |l| m



P N

sanima) Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd.

SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDROPOWER LTD.
Kathmandu, Nepal

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 General

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd., a Public Limited Company having its registered office at
Kathmandu Metropolitan City, Kathmandu is registered with the Office of Company Registrar (OCR)
under the Companies Act,2063 on 23rd Baisakh, 2073 (5th May, 2016) with registration number
148796/072/73 for infrastructure construction and operation of different hydropower and other
project under BOOT model. Currently the company has been developing Middle Tamor Hydropower
Project (73 MW).

In the financial statements, Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd has been referred as “SMTHL” or
the company.

Financial Statements
The Financial Statement of the SMTHL for the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 comprises:
¢ Statement of Financial Position
¢ Statement of Profit or Loss
¢ Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
¢ Statement of Cash Flows
¢ Statement of Changes in Equity
¢ Schedule that are integral parts of the financial statement
¢ Notes to the Financial Statements and Significant Accounting Policies of the Company

1.2 Principal Activities and Operations

The principal activity of the company is to generate and sell hydroelectricity to Nepal Electricity
Authority.

1.3 Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the fair preparation and presentation of Financial Statements
of SMTHL as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006, in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard (NFRS).

1.4 Approval of Financial Statements by Directors

The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its
resolution dated ....coceeeeieceineeniinn 2080 and recommended for its approval by the Annual General
Meeting of the shareholders.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for
certain items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date.

2.2 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statement of SMTHL which comprises components mentioned above have been
prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards comprising of Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards and Nepal Accounting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act ,2006.

2.3 TFunctional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of SMTHL are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the SMTHL operates. Financial information are
presented in Nepalese Rupees, and round off to the lowest cardinal number of one digit. There was no
change in SMTHL's presentation and functional currency during the year under review.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have most significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows:-
3.1 Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of SMTHL’s ability to continue as a going concern and satisfied
that it has the resources to commue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore Board is nos hssg
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samma) Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd.

as a going concern and.do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the
Financial Statements are prepared on going concern.

3.2 Tair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial
position can be derived from active markets i.e., Level 1, they are derived from observable market
data. However, if this is not available, Level 2 and Level 3 Fair value measurement techniques have
been used as per NFRS. If this cannot be estimated, judgment is required to establish fair values.

3.3 Impairment of Available for Sale Investments

SMTHL reviews its debt securities, if any, classified as available for sale, at each reporting date to
assess whether they are impaired. Objective evidence that an available for sale debt security is
impaired includes among other things significant financial difficulty of the issuer, a breach of contract
such asadefault or delinquency ininterest or principal payments etc. SMTHL also records impairment
charges on available for sale equity investments where there is significant or prolonged decline in fair
value below their cost. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment.
SMTHL shall generally treat ‘significant’ as 20% and ‘prolonged’ as greater than six months. In
addition, SMTHL evaluates, among other factors, historical share price movements, duration and
extent up to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets subject to impairment testing include intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment. The corporation tests material intangible assets under construction at least annually for
impairment. Assets subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverahle. An
impairment test is performed by comparing the carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit
(CGU) to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the fair value
less costs to sell and Value in use which is the present value of the future cash flows from an asset or
CGU.

3.5 Useful Life of the Property, Plant and Equipment

SMTHL reviews the residual values, useful life and method of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment at each reporting date. Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life
of the assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors
including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives, residual values and
methaods are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.

3.6 Taxation

The SMTHL is subject to income tax and judgment is required to determine the total provision for
current, deferred and other taxes due to the uncertainties that exists with respect to the interpretation
of the applicability of tax laws, at the time of preparation of these financial statements.

Uncertainties also exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount.,
and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long tefy
nature and complcxny of emstmg contractual agreements, differences arising between the act\u%l
results and the assumg) Ons mad\e or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate Future
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adjustments to tax income and expense amounts that were initially recorded, and deferred tax
amounts in the period in which the determination is made.

3.7 Provisions for Liabilities and Contingencies

The SMTHL may receive legal claims and litigation against it in the normal course of business.
Management makes judgments as to the likelihood of any claim succeeding in making provisions. The
time of concluding legal claims is uncertain, as is the amount of possible outflow of economic benefits.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual amount could differ
from those estimates, but differences are not expected to be materials. Such liabilities are not
recognized in the financial statements, however same has been disclosed in Notes to the financial
statements 5.12.

Sl
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Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these Financial Statements, and deviations if any have been disclosed accordingly.

5.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition
of the PPE. Expenses capitalized also include applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets,
if any. All up gradation /enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they
bring similar significant additional benefits. Subsequently, PPE can be measured on Cost
model or Revaluation model.

5.1.1Cost model
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulated
impairment losscs.

5.1.2Revaluation model
The Hydropower Company has not applied the revaluation model to any class of freehold land
and buildings or other assets.

On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount is recognized in ‘Other
comprchensive income” and accumulated in equity, under capital reserve or used to reverse
a previous revaluation decrease relating to the same asset, which was charged to the
Statement of Profit or Loss. In this circumstance, the increase is recognized as income to the
extent of previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying amount is recognized as an
expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss or debited to the Other Comprehensive income to
the extent of any credit balance existing in the capital reserve in respect of that asset.

The decrease recognized in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in
equity under capital reserves. Any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of

an asset is transferred directly to retained earnings on retirement or disposal of the asset.

An item ofproperty, plant and equ1pmenl is de- recogmzed upon disposal or when no future @
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arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carryingamount of the asset
and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

The Company has adopted Cost model for property, plant & equipment. Carrying amount of
assets has been assumed as fair value.

5.2 Capital Work in Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major

plant and machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization as PPE or [ntangible
assets. Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is
available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

5.3 Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic

benefits are capitalized upon acquisition and initially measured at cost comprising the
purchase price (including import duties and non-refundable taxes) and directly attributable
costs to prepare the asset for its intended use.

The useful life of an intangible asset is considered finite where the rights to such assets are
limited to a specified period of time by contract or law (e.g., licenses) or the likelihood of
technical, technological obsolescence (e.g, computer software). If, there are no such
limitations, the useful life is taken to be indefinite.

Intangible assets that have finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives by the
straight line method unless it is practical to reliably determine the pattern of benefits arising
from the asset. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortized.

Software is amortized over a period of five years.

Allintangible assets are tested for impairment. Amortization expenses and impairment losses
and reversal of impairment losses are taken to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income. Thus, after initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost
less accumulated amortization and / or impairment losses.

Intangible assets include Computer application and Service concession arrangements (in
accordance with IFRIC 12). Intangible asset (Computer application) includes the cost of
computer application development including software, direct charges for labor, materijalsjss,,
contracted services and borrowing costs as per NAS 23. 7 \
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Service concession arrangements of SMTHL includes Project Work in Progress of Middle
Tamor Hydro power Project (73 MW). Service concession arrangements are amortized over
the contractual period of 30 years as per the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) of SMTHL.
The details of Intangible Assets (Service Concession Arrangements) is shown in the following

table:
As onAshad As on Ashad
Particulars End 2080 End2079
CWIP- CIVIL WORKS e
General Items Civil 358,336,501 341,126,734

Headworks Civil

1,850,473,374

1,421,197,933

Underground Works Civil

1,938,265,700

1,378,431,994

Il 3t anffes AmEn=URIaT (31.3. 20©</0co) |l

Surge Shaft Civil 210,885,531 130,740,244
Penstock, Anchor Blocks and saddle Supports Civil 140,515,073 22,055,879
Powerhouse Civil 311,239,641 253,140,123
Turbine Outlet Chamber Tailrace Culvert and |
Floodwall Civil 94,039,504 73,977,608
Temporary River Diversion/Coffer Dam at
Headworks Civil 38,149,722 37,369,584
| Provisional Sum Civil 679,444,456 196,510,720
Main Civil Contractors- Others 7,508,699 -
Sub-total 5,628,858,203 | 3,854,550,820
CWIP- EMPLOYERS PROVISION
Boomer Rental and Accessories 52,136,587 12,244,885
Equipment and Machine Qperating accessories 33,250,233 1,821,986
Material and Manpower for Employer's Scope 168,054,227 33,749,125
Other Equipment Rental and Accessories 39,948,958 39,704,479 |
Robotic Short Crete Rental and accessories 40,608,821 -
Short Term Machine Operator/Helper/Mechanics
Cost 17,948,711 6,090,072
Sub-total 351,947,536 93,610,547
CWIP- ELECTROMECHANICAL EQUIPMENTS AND
| WORKS WA . Sher
Electromechanical Works- Supply Portion 1,227,668,773 579,889,044
Sub-total 1,227,668,773 579,889,044
_CWIP- ENGINEERING MANAGEMENT COST ey -
Advertisement and Publicity 438,795 416,703 |
_Books And Newspaper Expenses 12,498 12,498
Business Promotion Expenses 2,895,059 1,977,698
Camp Facilitation Expenses 945,808 589,820
Communication Expenses 4,702,884 3,870,172
Computer & Software Maintenance Expenses 484,303 347,715
Consultancy Fee 124,741,650 100,200,028
Courier/Postage & Air Document Expenses 10,883 2,740 |
| Credit Rating Fee-Site 1,384,250 819,25¢
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Depreciation on Assets Specifically used at site 8,021,001 3,321,160
EJA Expenses 629,235 629,235
Electricity and Water Expenses 4,487,854 3,591,823
Field Consumable Goods Expenses 4,046,797 3,729,936
Financial Consultancy Fee 887,050 412,450
Fuel and Lubricants Expenses 23,151,185 21,198,742
Gardening Expenses (Plantation Expenses) 6,540 6,540
Government Fee-Site 7,183,332 7,129,267
Hospitality Expenses 5,256,181 4,241,916
Housekeeping Expenses 2,508,545 1,769,017
Insurance Expenses (Staff) 774,570 485,552
| Insurance Expenses (Vehicle & Others) 3,431,867 2,798,703
Kitchen Utensils/Accessories Expenses 906,400 697,901
_lab Test Iixpenses Materials/Tools & Equipment 903,632 495,171
Meeting Expenses 83,201 -
Meeting Allowances Expenses 257,531 200,467
Membership Fee and Renewal Expenses 30,000 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 377,520 326,244
| Mortgage Expenses 129,000 129,000
Occupational, Health, Safety and Medicine Expenses 9,428,227 7,413,580
| Office Consumable Goods Expenses 2,813,277 2,703,248
Office Rent/Lease Expenses 911,332 611,176
Porter/Helper/Temporary/Daily Wage 3,742,634 3,395,424
Printing and Stationcry Expenses 1,507,173 1,182,156
| Repair and Maintenances Expenses Others ) 1,983,379 1,727,710
E»_R_c_p_q_ig_a_gd Maintenances Expenses Vehicle 15,736,770 10,240,010
Security Guard Expenses 5,457,406 3,930,098
Share Management Fee and Charges 99,969 -
Stafl Food Facilitation Expenses 23,131,781 15,898,887
| Staff Refreshment/Sports/Picnic Expenses 1,123,597 641,198
Technical Consultancy Fee 6,160,127 4,598,221
Training, Seminar and Educational Tour Expenses 311,283 232,883
Transportation and Fare Expenses 16,651,682 13,499,375
Travelling Expenses 21,040,970 18,234,422
 Vehicle Renewal Expenses 617,530 204,930
Warehouse, Equipment Hire & Others Rent Expenses 299,415 299,415
Sub-total 309,704,122 244,212,481
' CWIP-ENVIRONMENT MITIGATION PLAN AR SUHZE
EMP Expenses- Site 3,029,123 2,137,810 |
| Plantation Expense 3,808,422 3,699,922
Sub-total 6,837,545 5,837,732
'CWIP-ENVIRONMENT MITIGATION PLAN- TL : T
Land and Compensation- TL 180,100 180,44
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ROW compensation- TL 12,394,654 -
Sub-total 12,574,754 180,100
CWIP- Hydromechanical Works
Bell Mouths, steel Penstocks with bends, Banches,
Saddle, Wear Plates, PVC sheets, Manholes and Air 145,012,688 28,044,356
| vent/stand Pipes
Gates With Embedded Parts & Hosting System 92,787,040 26,316,118
| General [tems HM 22,805,587 14,925,025
Hydromechinical Steel Plate 112,158,506 112,158,506
Miscellaneous Steel Works 26,806,583 24,317,148
Provisional Sum HM 13,302,190 13,302,190
| Stoplogs With Embedded Parts and Hosting Systems 34,650,292 12,928,556
Trash Racks With Embedded Parts & Trash Rack
Cleaning Machine (TRCM) 12,665,407 8222191
Sub-total 460,188,293 | 240,214,089
CWIP- INFRASTRUCTURE AND GENERAL '
Additional Geo-technical and Geophysical Works 5,369,534 5,369,534
CWIP Access Road/ Access Road Upgrading Works 119,131,943 116,862,033
CWIP Baily Bridge 19,619,291 19,619,291
CWIP Construction Power Line 55,205,357 54,786,358
CWIP Motorable Truss Bridge 72,276,025 72,270,075
CWIP Staff Quarters 100,512,498 90,912,370
| Project Development Cost 100,000,000 100,000,000
Temporary River Crossing 3,098,515 3,098,515
Temporary Staff and Others Quarters 2,843,858 1,927,706
Sub-total 478,057,023 | 464,845,883
CWIP-INTEREST DURING CONSTRUCTION (IDC)
| Bank Commission and Charges- Site 1,683,924 -
Interest on Bank Bridge Gap Loan 20,312,346 10,903,954
Interest on Bank Term Loan 1,044,643,859 435,613,931
I.C Commission and .oan Management Charges 50,555,087 45,388,886
Sub-total 1,117,195,216 491,906,770
CWIP-LAND ASSOCIATED COST
| Compensation for Land 3,863,585 3,863,585
Land (Project) 58,656,175 58,061,175
| Land Lease- Site 770,000 640,000
l.and Related Expenses- Site 2,981,871 243,901
Sub-total 66,271,631 62,808,661
CWIP-TRANSMISSION LINE (TL) i oty
Installation Service 100,189,143 56,683,400
Plant and Equipment (Conductor) 34,424,320 34,424,320
Plant and Equipment (Other tems) 37,247,740 35,765,709
Transmission Line Licence Fee - ~ 4,000,000 4,000,000 | i,
L[;g‘nsmfig_giin Line Related Overhead Cost 3,099,343 1,674,419/; :

e,
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Sub-total 178,960,546 | 132,547,839
_CWIP-SITE STAFF COST

Allowances 122,072,608 89,515,378
Basic Salary 61,450,205 45,366,304
Dashain Allowances 5,296,530 3,148,886
Gratuity Expenses 2,552,904 2,552,904
Incentives 1,216,211 1,216,211
Leave Expenses 12,047,454 8,681,963
Leave Pay Expenses Provision 1,560,544 1,144,713
Overtime/Night Shift Allowances 5,947,137 3,522,231
Provident Fund Expenses 2,885,331 2,885,331
Social Security Fund (SSF} 20% 6,119,851 2,903,070
Sub-total 221,148,774 160,936,991
CWIP-COMMUNITY SUPPORT PROGRAM (CSP)

Community Support 55,914,076 43,847,706
Sub-total 55,914,076 43,847,706
Total 10,115,326,492 | 6,375,388,663

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

5.4 Service Concession arrangements
IFRIC 12 on Service Concession arrangements provides that the Operator’s right over the

infrastructure assets cannot be recognized as property, plant and equipment (PPE) of the
operator.

This Interpretation applies to public-to-private service concession arrangements if:

(a) The grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the
infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

(b) The grantor controls—through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise-any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful
life (whole of lifc assets) is within the scope of this Interpretation, if the following conditions
satisfies. This Interpretation applies to both:

(a) infrastructure that the operator constructs or acquires from a third party for tkﬁ

purpose of the service arrangement and [*
ot M’Clrg ~ \‘i
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(b) The grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise-any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the
arrangement.

The consideration received by the operator is recognized at fair value. Consideration may
result in the recognition of a financial asset or an intangible asset.

5.4.1 Recognition as a financial asset

The Financial asset model is used when the Company, being an operator, has an unconditional
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the
grantor for the construction services. Unconditional contractual right is established when the
grantor contractually guarantees to pay the operator (a) specific or determinable amount; (b)
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the users of the public services and
specified or determinable amounts.

5.4.2 Recognition as an intangible asset

The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the SMTHL, being an operator, receives
a right (a license) to charge users of the public service. A right to charge users of a public
services is not an unconditional right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent on
to the extent that public uses the services. Both type of arrangements may exist within a single
contract to the extent that the grantor has given an unconditional guarantee of payment for
the construction and the operation i.e. considered as a Financial asset and to the extent that
the operator has to rely on the public using the service in order to obtain payment, the
operation has an intangible asset.

The Company manages concession arrangements which will include power supply from its
hydro power plant namely Middle Tamor Hydropower Project (73 MW. The Company
maintains and services the infrastructure during the concession period. These concession
arrangements set out rights and obligations related to the infrastructure and the services to
be provided to the public user through Nepal Electricity Authority. The right to consideration
gives rise to an intangible asset and accordingly, the intangible asset models is applied.

5.5 Construction Agreements:

5.5.1 Main Civil Contract:

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd. has signed the contract with Zhejiang First Hydro and
Power Construction Group Private Limited on 12th April, 2018 for USD 55,986,732.53 and
the amount has been locked into NPR as 60%-dollar portion to be multiplied by NPR 103 and
40% NPR portion to be multiplied by NPR 102.21. However, the contract has been revised
and the total amount of revised contract is USD 68,400,398.12. on 2021

Advance Provided to Main Civil Contractor as on 31st Ashad, 2080 is NPR 154,263,517.4
The Contractor has issued bills up to IPC#25 till 31st Ashad, 2080.
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5.5.2 Hydro Mechanical Contract:

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd. has signed the contract with Machhapuchhre Metal
and Machinery Works Pvt. Ltd. on 11th July, 2019 having contract amount of NPR
556,098,639 for Main Hydro Mechanical works. However, the contract has been revised and
the total amount after the revision is NPR. 567,134,202.24

Advance provided to Machhapuchhre Metal and Machinery Works as on 31st Ashad, 2080 is
NPR 34,506,693.88. The Contractor has issued bills up to IPC#07 till 31st Ashad, 2080.

5.5.3 Electro Mechanical Contract:

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd. has signed the contract with Chongqing Water
Turbine Works Co., Ltd. on 23rd December, 2019 having contract amount of $11,603,762.98
and NPR 25,147,622 for Main Electro Mechanical works. The Contractor has issued 12
commercial invoice for the supply portion till 31st Ashad, 2080, the party has provided us
with commercial invoice where the reporting currency is dollar. Also they are provided with
the advance payment of NPR. 76,653,646.06.

5.5.4 Transmission Line Contract:

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd. has signed the contract with Cosmic Electrical
Engineering Associates Pvt. Ltd. on 7th June, 2020 having contract amount of NPR
186,265,594 for Main Transmission Line works. The Contractor has issued five bills till 31st
Ashad, 2080. Also, an advance of NPR 8,000,000 has been provided to the Contractor.

5.6 Financial Instruments

5.6.1 Date of Recognition

All financial asscts and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date that
SMTHL becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes ‘regular
way trades’. Regular way trade means purchases or sales of financial assets that required

delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the markel place.

5.6.2 Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

The classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their purpose
and characteristics and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All financial
instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to acquisition or issue of such financial instruments except in the case of such
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as per the Nepal Accounting
Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Transaction cost
in relation to [inancial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
dealt with the Statement of Profit or Loss.

5.6.3 C(lassification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets
At the inception, a financial asset is classified into one of the following:
a. [Financial assets at fgrﬁ@shrough profit or loss
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i. Financial assets held for trading

ii. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
b. Held to Maturity Financial Assets
c. Loansand Receivables
d. Financial assets available for sale

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.

5.6.3.a Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

5.6.3.a (i) Financial Assets Held for Trading

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is
managed together for short-term profit or position taking. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by SMTHL that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standards NAS 39
(Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognized in ‘Fair value gains and losses’. Dividend income
is recorded in ‘Other Income’ when the right to receive the payment has been established.
Interest income earned from financial assets held for trading is recorded under ‘Other
Income’ using the effective interest rate.

SMTHL evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to determine
whether the intention to sell them in the near future is still appropriate. When SMTHL is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to
sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, SMTHL may elect to reclassify these
financial assets.

Financial assets held for trading include instruments such as government securities and
equity instruments that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term.

5.6.3.a (ii) Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
SMTHL designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following
circumstances:
1.  Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets.
2. The assets are partof a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are ’
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3. The asset contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the
cash flows that would otherwise have been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss is recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Other Income’ in the
Statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned is accrued under ‘Other Income’, using the
effective interest rate method, and dividend income is also recorded under ‘Other Income’
when the right to receive the payment has been established.

The SMTHI. has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at
fair value through profit or loss.

5.6.3. b Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable Payments and fixed maturities which the SMTHL has the intention and ability
Lo hold to maturity. After the initial measurement, held to maturity financial investments are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate, less impairment.
The amortization is included in ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses
arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss.

The term deposits of 12 months’ maturity has been shown under this heading in the financial
statements.

5.6.3. c Financial Assets Available for Sale

Available lor sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments
classified as ‘Available for Sale’ are those which are neither classified as ‘Held for Trading’ nor
‘Designated at fair value through profit or loss’. Debt securities in this category are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity through
‘Other comprehensive income / expense’ in the ‘Available for sale reserve’. When the
investment is disposed of the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Other operating income’. Where SMTHL
holds more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed off on
a first-in-first-out basis. Interest earned whilst holding ‘Available for sale financial
investments’ is reported as ‘Other income’ using the effective interest rate. Dividend earned
whilst holding ‘Available for sale financial investments’ are recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss as ‘Other Income’ when the right to receive the payment has been established.
The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in 9the Statement of
Profit or Loss under ‘Other operating and administrative expenses’ and removed from tg,e,

‘Available for sale reserve’. VA 7N
The company does not have any Avai ble for sale investments. {\g i £
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5.7 Financial Liabilities

The Company initially recognizes loans and receivables and debt securities issued on the date
when they are originated. All other financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade
date when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A
financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-
trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction costs
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest
expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other non-derivative financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.

As per the Carve out No. 3 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal on
2077/05/03 on NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for financial
institutions, the effective interest rate is the rate exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to be the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or
received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts.

Furthermore, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal has clarified that other entities
(except financial institutions) may prepare the financial statements using the above Carve out
by giving adequate disclosures.

In case of the Company, the future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liabilities could not be determined in exact figures due to fluctuating interest rates,
undetermined repayment or prepayment terms and, other premiums and discounts. Hence,
the financial liabilities have not been measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Other financial liabilities consist of amount due to related parties, other creditors including
accruals and outstanding commission payable.

De-recognition of other financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. :
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Long Term Loan (Bank Loan)
The company has recognized long term liability (Bank Loan) as financial liability and has been
measured at transaction cost.

5.8 Depreciation and Amortization

1. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land
and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the written down method.

2. Amortization is recognized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

3. Depreciation is provided on the written down method based on the estimated useful
lives of the assets determined by the management. Depreciation on additions to fixed
assets is charged on pro-rata basis in the year of purchase. The useful life of the assets
and the corresponding rates at which the assets are depreciated are as follows:

| Category of assets Estimated useful life Depreciation Rate
Building 58-59 years 5%
Plant and Equipment 18-19 years 15%
Office Equipment 10-11 years 25%
Furniture and fixtures 10-11 years 25%
Computers and accessories 10-11 years 25%
Vehicles 13-14years 20%

Computer software is amortized over an estimated useful life of 5 years on straight
line basis.

4. Useful life is either the period of time which the assets is expected to be used or the
number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the use of asset.

The estimated useful life, residual values an depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospeclive basis.

5. Office furniture, equipment, vehicles & plant equipment costing less than NPR 5,000
per unit is charged to the profit and loss account in the year of purchase.

5.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets subject to impairment testing include intangible assets and property,
plantand equipment. Impairment of material intangible assets under construction are tested
at least once a year. Assets subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.
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generating unit (CGU) to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the fair value less costs to sell and Value in use which is the present value of the
future cash flows from an asset or CGU.

5.10 Retirement Benefits Obligations

5.10.1 Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which SMTHL pays fixed
contribution into a separate Institution (or own fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods, as defined
in Nepal Accounting Standards - NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the
services rendered to SMTHL by the employees and is recorded as an expense under
‘Personnel expenses’ asand when they become due. Unpaid contributions, ifany, are recorded
as a liability under ‘Other liabilities’.

5.10.2 Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. Accordingly, leave encashment has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal
Accounting Standards - NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

5.10.3 Gratuity

Gratuity has been booked as per the prevailing Labor Act, 2074 in Nepal. The Board of
Directors (BOD) meeting has decided to deposit the Gratuity amount i.e. 8.33% of basic salary
per month of the employee in social security fund As the gratuity of employee is fixed, so as
per NAS 19 actuarial valuations for Gratuity is not required in order to determine the liability
or asset that the company have at the year end.

5.10.4 Unutilized Accumulated Leave

SMTHL's liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized beyond one
year from the end of the reporting period is treated as other long term employee benefits.
SMTHL’s net obligation towards unutilized accumulated leave is calculated by discounting the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods to determine the present value of such benefits. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the
terms of SMTHL’s obligation. The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit
method. Net change in liability for unutilized accumulated leave including any actuarial gain
and loss arc recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ in the_

R Ase.
period in which they arise. /éf‘\ 5
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NAS 19 requires actuarial valuations for Leave encashment in order to determine the liability
or asset that the company have at the year end. Actuarial valuations has been carried out to

determine the same.

l.eave encashment have been subject to actuarial valuations as per the provisions of NAS 19.
The details of valuation and basis of valuation is presented in Notes to Financial Statements
26. The actuarial valuation of leave provision is done by G.N. Agarwal, Consulting Actuary,

Mumbali, India.

The Nepal Accounting Standard 19 on “Employee Benefits” issued by the Institute of chartered
Accountants of Nepal has been adopted by the Company as under:

Defined Benefit plans in respect of Leave Encashment - as per actuarial valuation

Salary escalation rate .

Year 2079-80 2078-79
Particulars Leave Encashment | Leave Encashment
(Non Funded) (Non Funded)
Expenses Recognized In Income Statement
Interest Cost 119790 97,551
Current Service Cost 757,847 322,045
Expected Return on Plan Assets .
|_Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss (504,635) (46,231) |
Past Service Cost -
|_Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c 373,002 373,365
Change in Present Value Obligations
| PV of Obligation at beginning of the year 1,355,080 1,116,389
|_[nterest Cost 119790 97,551
__Current Service Cost 757,847 322,045
Benefitpaid (219,352) (134,674)
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss (504,635) (46,231)
Liability at the end of the year 1,508,730 1,355,080
Change in Fair Value of ’lan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Asset at Beginning of the Year
_Expected Return on Plan Assets )
| Contribution by Employer
Benefit paid
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Plan Assets o
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of the Year
Amount Recognized in Statement of Financial
Position
Present Value of Obligations at Year End 1,508,730 1,355,080
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year End
_Funded Status (1,508,730) (1,355,080)
Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain)/Loss at Year End
Unrecognized Past Service Cost
Net Asset/(Liability) Recognized in Balance Sheet (1,508,730) (1,355,080)
Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate 10% 10%
10.47% 15.64%

W
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Retirement age 58 58 _
Remaining Working Life 5 5
Mortality NALMT 2009 NALMT 2009

5.11 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected
to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

5.12 Provisions and Contingencies

In accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS) 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, a provision is required to be recognized where there is a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the
timing or amount of which are uncertain,

The company has made provisions for all those obligations meeting the definition of NAS 37.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingentliability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the entity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
reporting period.

5.13 Government grants
Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an

entity in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating
activities of the entity.

Government grants can be Grants related to assets or Grants related to income. Under Grants

Asr
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acquire long-term assets. Grants related to income are grants other than grants related to
assets.

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance they will be received
and the corporation will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. Government
grants that compensate the corporation for expenses incurred are recognized in profit or loss
in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grants that compensate the
corporation for the cost of an asset are recorded as deferred revenue and recognized in other
revenue over the service life of the related asset.

Government grants shall be recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them
with the related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.

Once a government grant is recognized, any related contingent liability or contingent asset is
treated in accordance with NAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

5.14 Borrowing cost

As per NAS 23, Borrowing costs are the costs incurred by the company in borrowing loans for
construction of assets or any capital goods. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences
to the extentregarded as an adjustm‘ent to the borrowing costs. Borrowings can be general or
specific. Borrowing costs are capitalized till the construction of asset is complete and is ready
for use.

5.15 Leases

Leases arerecognized as a finance lease wherever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Company as a Lessee
SMTHL has used the relief option provided for leases of low-value assets and short-term

leases and expense the payments in the income statement according to the straight-line
method. The company has undergone a lease agreement for office premises for a period of

three years among which one year has already passed and we are planning to shift our office

to another place next year. so we are going to make a new agreement, as a result of which the

lease agreement is going to be scrapped. In such case due to the reliable basis of assumption

and due to low value and short term lease agreement we have used the relief option.

Company as a Lessor

For operating lease SMTHL reports the leased assets of amortized cost as an asset under the
property, plant & Equipment where it is the lessor. The lease payment received in the period

are shown under other operating income on straight line basis. Where SMTHL is the lessor in
finance lease, the assets ore recognized as lease receivables in the amount of the net s,
investment in the statement of financial position. During the reporting period, the compan’é;? \
has not leased out any of its-asse 'tf"‘4il'-\i'1"\ \s

)
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The company has accounted for operating lease payments on straight line basis over the
period of lease term and made necessary changes in previous year’s figures in respect of
operating lease as per NAS 17.

The company has booked NPR 869,400.00 as lease expense for the FY 2079-80 under
operating lease agreement with Sanima Pvt. Ltd.

5.16 Recceivables and Payables

Receivables and payables are accounted on accrual basis. Balance amounts on year end are
shown in Statement of Financial Position under ‘Current Other Financial Assets’ and ‘Current
Other Financial Liabilities” headings.

5.17 Bridge Gap Loan
There is no Bridge Gap Loan as on Ashad End 2080.

5.18 Retention Amount Payable
Retention Amount Payable to the Contractors as at 31st Ashad, 2078 is as follows:

Non-Current Financial Liabilities
_Ef-hongqing Water Turbine Works Co.Ltd 377,823,266.14
“Cosmic Electrical Engineering Associates Pvt.Ltd 4,107,098.12
Machhapuchhre Metal and Machinery Works Pvt. Ltd. 15,218,178.76
Zhejiang First Hydro and Power Construction Group 233,484,969.27
| Total 630,633,512.29
Current Financial Liabilities
Bavari Construction Pvt. Ltd. 637,436.66
Brahmayani Construction Pvt. Ltd. 233,929.00
Fit Engineering Survey Consultancy Pvt. Ltd. 37,610.62
Phaktanglung Nirman Sewa Pvt.Ltd 44,169.10
Safira Interior Design 119,512.00
-S—h_ui/éﬁ'l‘unnelling and Construction Pvt.Ltd 269,905.67
Total 1,342,563.05

5.19 Financial Income
Financial Income includes:
¢ Interestincome earned from bank deposits.

5.20 TIncome Tax

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate

amount included in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and

deferred taxation. Income Tag_gg_—ggqge\is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, exceP§§ bsso,
oy ¥ ] .’.ﬁ‘
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to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income
in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Income Tax Act 2058 has specified a tax rate of 25% flat for Hydropower Companies.

As per Section 11 (3 Gha) of Income Tax Act 2058, Hydropower companies are exempted from
tax for the first 10 years of its operation and 50% concession on tax is provided for the next
5 years thereon.

5.20.1 Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to
[nland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior years.

Current Tax Assets include Advance Tax amounting NPR 3,323,055.00.

5.20.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities and the amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or
equity, are disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has alegally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax Assets with Deferred Tax Income of NPR. 31,002 for the year has been
recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of Property, Plant
& Equipment and Provision for Leave, and the amounts used for taxation purpose at the
Income Tax rate of 25%.

Further no deferred tax asset has been created for loss suffered by the company in FY
2078/79 since the company will be enjoying tax holiday period during the period where the.ﬂ‘,-;c.:_,a(_/

loss is expected to be set off with taxable income. A
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5.21 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash in hand,
cash at bank and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

5.22 Revenue Recognition

5.22.1 Construction Revenue (Service Concession Arrangement)

The Company has recorded the revenue of NPR 3,739,937,829 representing revenue from
construction activities carried out with respect to creation of Project Assets during the year,
which is based on forecasted cost as per IFRIC 12.

5.22.2 Construction Cost (Service Concession Arrangement)
The Construction Cost represents aggregate of cost incurred for creation of Project Assets
during the reporting period.

The details of the Construction Revenue and Construction Cost recorded with respect to the
creation of Project Assets is as follows:

e Y - 2079-80 | 207879

Particulars — e

Pl B R LI e e | i N B Rl | Tnue I N PREZS s
Construction Revenue 3,739,937,829 2,251,044,164
Construction Cost (3,739,937,829) (2,251,044,164)

5.22.3 Salc of electricity

The company is in construction phase, hence revenue from sale of electricity has not been
recognized.

5.22.4 Other Income
Other income arising during the year are recognized on accrual basis. Such income consists
of insurance claimed received during the year.

5.23 Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is determined on the basis of the
primary economic environment in which it operates. The functional currency of the Company
is Nepali Rupees.

Revenues and expenses resulting from transactions in foreign currencies are translated to
Nepalese Rupee equivalents at exchange rates approximating those in effect at the transaction
date.

[l] 31et affes ArEmRUIaT (3M.d. 20e:/0to) ||
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during
the period or in previous financial statements has been recognized (using the closing rate of
reporting date) as foreign exchange gain or loss and adjusted with statement of Profit and
Loss as per NAS 21.

5.24 Advance to Contractors
Following advances to the Contractors have been lying outstanding as at 31st Ashad, 2080:

Particulars Amount in NPR
Chongqing Water Turbine Works Co. Ltd (EM Contractor) 76,653,646.06
Cosmic Electrical Engineering Associates Pvt. Ltd (TL Contractor) 8,000,000.00
Machhapuchhre Metal and Machinery Works Pvt. Ltd (HM Contractor) 34,506,693.88
Zhejiang First Hydro and Power Construction Group (Main Civil Contractor) 154,263,517.48
Total 273,423,857.42

5.25 Cash/ Letter of Credit and Custom Margin
The details of Cash/Letter of Credit Margin as on 31st Ashad 2080 is as follows:

LC Cash Margin 29,953,581
_Custom Margin 932,200
Total 30,885,781

5.26 NEA Guarantee
Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd. has provided bank guarantee of NPR 43,800,000

from Laxmi Bank Ltd. to Nepal Electricity Authority for Power Purchase Agreement.

5.27 Earnings per share
Earnings per share is the portion of company’s profit allocated to each outstanding share of

common stock. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the
year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

2079/80 2078/79
Amount used as a Numerator
| Profit Attributable to ordinary Shareholders (29,267,989) (56,596,851) |
Amount used as the Denominator
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 27,664,305 24,993,750
_Basic Earnings per Ordinary Share (NPR) (1.06) (2.26)

5.28 Events after the Reporting Period
No circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which would require adjustments to,

or disclosure in the financial statements. A
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5.29 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of an entity represent parent company, major shareholders, associated
companies, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and companies of which
they are principal owners.

The names of these related parties, nature of these transactions and their total value have
been set out in accordance with the provisions of NAS 24- ‘Related Party Disclosures”.

Key management personnel refers to the person who have authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of NEA either directly or indirectly.

Related party transactions also include transaction with entities that are controlled, joint
ventures or significantly influenced directly by any key management personnel or their close
family members.

The company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with the parties who
are defined as related parties in the International Accounting Standard - NAS 24 (Related
Party Disclosures), the details of which are reported below. The pricing applicable to such
transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the company and is
comparable with what is applied to transactions between the company and its unrelated
customers.

Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party
The Company does not have an identifiable parent of its own.

Key Managerial Personnel

According to Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures) Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity. Such KMPs include the Board of Directors of the
Company (including both Executive and Non-Executive Directors), key employees who are
holding directorship in Subsidiary companies of the Company.

Close Family Members (CFM) of the KMPs are those family members who may be expected to
influence or be influenced by that KMPs in their dealing with the entity. They may include
KMPs domestic partner and children of the KMPs domestic partner and dependents of the
KMPs and the KMPs domestic partner.

S.No. Name Title
1 Mr. Binay Kumar Shrestha Chairman
2 Mr. Shiv Kumar Basnet Member
3 A_Mr.Apar Neupane Member
4 Mrs. Ruchi Joshi Member
5 Mr. Braj Bhusan Chaudhary Member
6 Mr. Bishal Banjara _____ Company Secretary

m Il 3net e ArEmRUIaT (3n.d. 20 /0to) |l
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Compensation of key management personnel

Particulars Amount

Board Meeting Fee 502,000
Audit Committee meeting. 70,000
Other expenses related to Board Meeting. 208,632

.

SN Relatc_:if’:arty Status Transaction Typeh Zﬁ:ﬁii;;’;m g:lt:;i:d(wgm
1 Sanima Bank Limited Deposits 867,119,565.23 | 222,377,939.59
Withdrawal 785,031,333.69
Bank Charges and
Commission 510.00
Interest Income 5,272,650.17
Common .
Promoters from Call Deposit
2 Sanima Hydro and Consultancy Fee
Engineering Pvt. Ltd. 10,057,640.34
5 Bavari Construction Various
Pvt. Ltd. construction 51,724,989.75
services acquired. i
4 Akama Hotel Pvt. Ltd. Cqmmon Hospitality service 5,38,626.00
Director

5.30 Previous year’s figure has been rearranged & regrouped whenever necessary.
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SANIMA MIDDLE TAMOR HYDROPOWER LTD.
MIDDLE TAMOR HYDROPOWER PROJECT (73 MW)
CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS REPORT

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 BACKGROUND OF THE PROJECT

The under construction Middle Tamor Hydropower Project (MTHP) is a run-of-river (RoR) project with an
installed capacity of 73 MW with its headworks (HW) located in Phungling Municipality and Phaktanglung
Rural Municipality, and the Powerhouse (PH) is situated in Mikwakhola Rural Municipality on the Tamor River
in Taplejung district. The boundary coordinates of the project are 870 40' 01" E to 870 42' 40™ E and 270 23' 29"
N to 270 25'19" N. The nearest black-topped approach road to the project site is at Bahanande, on the Mechi
Highway (233 km from Charali in Jhapa), 7 km south of the district headquarters Phungling Bazar. From
Phungling, the project Powerhouse (Thumba village) and Headworks (Mitlung village) sites are accessible via
different earthen roads at a distance of 20km.

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd. (SMTHL} was established as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) Company
for the implementation and operation of the Middle Tamor Hydropower Project. The Generation License
of the Project was initially obtained for 54 MW on June 5, 2017. Subsequently, the design was revised, and
a generation license for the revised capacity of 73 MW was obtained on December 10, 2018. SMTHL has
overseen the construction works through four major individual contract packages with various international
and national contractors. The Main Civil, Hydro-Mechanical, Electro-Mechanical, and Transmission Line
Contractors have all been involved in the construction process. Apart from these major contracts, pre-
construction and preparatory works have been executed by SMTHL. These include the construction of access
roads, upgrading of existing roads, slope protection works, construction of bridges, land acquisition, and
other necessary arrangements.
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Considering various technical factors affecting the overall progress of the Project and the construction of
the transmission line being constructed by the Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) from Dhunge Sanghu
to Basantapur, the Employer and NEA agreed to extend the required commercial operation date (RCOD)
until the completion of the construction of the above mentioned transmission line. Therefore, as per the
second revision done on the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with NEA, the RCOD of the Project has been
amended to a revised date of February 27, 2024 (Falgun 15, 2080).

Regarding technical features of the Project, the installed capacity is 73 MW, with a design discharge of 73.71
m?3/s, corresponding to 42.71% exceedance flow. The catchment area of the Project is 2,002 km?, and the gross
head is 132 m. The weir, 50 m long, has its crest level at 887 m above mean sea level (amsl). The maximum
height of the weir crest from its original ground level is 10.5 m. It diverts the reguired flow to the Intake. The
Intake has 6 openings to withdraw the design discharge. The flow from the Intake is conveyed to the gravel
trap and then to the underground settling basin via a concrete-cased approach pipe of 281.52 m length. The
three-chambered 100 m long underground settling basin, designed with 90% trap efficiency, passes the
clean water into the headrace tunnel.

The general layout of the project Is depicted in Figure 1.

The headrace tunnel, approximately 3,367 m long and lined
with concrete and shotcrete, carries the design discharge to
the penstock. The proposed penstock starts with a diameter
of 4.5 m until a branching length of about 264.66 m. After
that, four penstock pipes with internal diameters ranging
from 225 m to 45 m supply water to the powerhouse.
The Powerhouse, measuring 565 m in length and 26 m
in width, has a tailwater level at 755 m amsl. Four units of
vertical axis Francis turbines, each with a capacity of 18.25
MW, are set to generate the designed output of 73 MW.
After power generation, the tailwater is discharged back to
the Tamor River through a 75 m long tailrace culvert. The
generated electricity is supplied through an approximately |y~ -
9 km long 220 kV double circuit transmission line to the
Dhunge Sanghu substation of the Koshi Corridor, which
is being constructed by Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA).
The estimated annual energy generation as per the PPA is
429409 GWh.

Project Layout Map
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Figure 1.1: General layout of the Project Structures

1.2 PROJECT KEY INFORMATION

Project Key Data

Project Name

Middle Tamor Hydropower Project

Project Company Name

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Limited

Installed Capacity

73 MW

Annual generation

429.409 GWh

Location

Taplejung, Nepal

Main Civil Contract Award

12 April 2018

Date of Generation
license

5June 2017/10 Dec 2018

Date of PPA signing

10 Jan 2017/30 Nov 2018

Revised Project Cost
(estimated total)

NPR 13,330 Million

Total equity required
(estimated)

NPR 3,332.5 Million
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Total debt required

NPR 9,996.8 Million

Revised RCOD

Amended to 27 February

lead), NMB, NCC, Laxmi,
Nepal SBI, ADBL Banks

estimate algun 15,

(esti d) 2024 (Fal 15, 2080)
:‘:L:zl; _Gll_gggll ::j’ E I(I ég?_ Sanima Hydro and

Lenders ! Consultant Engineering Pvt. Ltd.

(SHE)

Main Civil Contractor

Zhejiang First Hydro
and Power Construction
Croup Co. Pvt. Ltd,,
Zhejiang, China

Hydro-Mechanical
Contracter

Machhapuchhre Metal
land Machinery Works Pvt.
Ltd., Pokhara, Nepal

Electro-Mechanical
Contractor

Chongqing Water and
Turbine Work Co. Pvt.
Ltd. ([CWTW), Chongqging,
China

Transmission Line
Contractor

Cosmic Electrical
Engineering Associates
Pvt. Ltd., Kathmandu,
Nepal

Project Input(s)
(Resources, Feedstock)

Project Output(s})

The Project has the design discharge of 73.71m3s with installed generating

capacity of 73 MW.

429409 CWh per year will be supplied to the Nepal electricity network, as per
the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with the Nepal Electricity Authority

(NEA)

1.3 SALIENT FEATURES OF THE PROJECT

Phungling Municipality, Phaktanglung Rural Municipality

Location:

and Mikwa Khola Rural Municipality, Taplejung District, Koshi
Province of Nepal

Purpose of Project:

Hydrology:

Catchment Area

To supply renewable energy for domestic use by connecting to
national grid

2,002.32 km?

Average Flow

126.69 m3fs (minimum monthly flow 19.55 m3/s)

Design Flow

73.71 m3/s (42.71% exceedance flow)

90% Exceedance flow

17.98 m3/s

Type

Design Flood {Qaoo) 2,791 m3&
Diversion Dam:

Concrete gravity dam

Slope

Ogee-profile

Crest Elevation

887 m above msl

Max. Flood Level (100 years return)

8954 m above msl

Crest Length

50m

Type

10.5 m (fram the Criginal ground level

Submerged with overflow spillway 2@ 5m x5 m)

874.50 m above msl

50mx50m

1] =&t anfas amErorEan (3ra. 200e/0co) |||
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S

Number of Orifices

6

Sill Elevation of Orifice

881 m above msl

Top Elevation of Crifice

885 m above msl

Size (BxH

Type

475 m x40 m (each

Rectangular, RCC {Continuous)

Particle size to be settled

5 mm-100 mm

Number of Chambers 3

Width (each) 1200 m

Height 11.85 m i
Length 1500 m

Approach Pipe

Type Concrete encased steel pipe

Number 1

Diameter 45m

Total Length {(Up to Inlet Portal}

28152 m and 20 m inside tunnel including Bell-mouth

Langitudinal slope

Underground Settling Basin:

11000 (ViH

Type Conventional flushing
Number of bay 3

Approcach Tunnel length 360.244 m (average)
Transition length 3Sm

Dimension {LxB)

100 m x13 m [each)

Particle Trap efficiency

90% (for sediment particles equal to or larger than 0.2 mm)

Longitudinal slope

1:50

Length from transition up to outlet gate

2275 m

Length from gate to vertical drop

3026 m

Converging tunnel length from drop to

main tunnel (Average of three 108622 m

Inspection Tunnel:

Length 131758 m |
Excavation Diameter 49m

Inspection Tunnel 1 {to SB inlet):

Length

145263 m (excluding common stretch)

Excavation Diameter

49 m

Inspection Tunnel 2 (to SB outlet):

Length 289524 m (excluding common stretch) |
Excavation Diameter 49 m

Adit-1 [near Nakla Kholsi):

Length 301562 m

Excavation Diameter

Number

49 m

5

Length from inlet to common tunnel

2872 m {each)

1Nl 5wt anfifes marrman (s 20e/oco) [
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Length (Excluding settling basin)

Size(B X H) 24mx24m
Length of common tunnel up to portal 32789 m
Slope of the tunnel 1:50

Size (B x H) 24mx29m
Length of culvert from portal to outlet 52778 m
Slope of the culvert 1:50

Size of culvert (B X H) 2mx25m
Total Sediment flushing length 409388 rm

3,367 m {up to outlet portal)

Dimensions

Inverted U shape 6.5 m (Excavation Diameter)

Su rec System

Concrete lining and shotcrete

Type Vertical, Underground circular section/ dome type |
Height 7993 m

Diameter 16,00 m (Excavation

Ventilation tunnel for Surge shaft:

Length 199.75m

Size(B X H) 35mX375m

Slope

1in 8.69

264.06 m inclined length of 4.50 m diameter including Bell-
mouth up to branching

After branching,

11.54 m of 4.5 m diameter including transition

Length 11.25 m of 3.9 m diameter including transition
11.47 m of 318 m diameter including transition
153.12m of 2.25 m diameter including transition
452.04 (Total Length)
Thickness 18 mm to 36 mm thickness
Grade E-350 (IS 2062 or Equivalent) |
Power Facilities:
Powerhouse Type Semi-surface |
Dimensions (LxB) 565mMx26m
Gross Head 132 m {887.0 m —755.0 m above msl}
Net Head 11559 m
Installed capacity 73 MW (4 x18.25 MW)
Dry energy 6490 GWh
Wet energy 364.27 GWh |

Annuzal Met Eneray O Lt

429402 CWh

Type RCC, rectangular culvert (double chamibered}
Length 75.00 m
Height 500 m \

7
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Width 475 m each
Longitudinal slope 1:500 (V:H}

Maximum Tail water level 755.00 m amsl|
Transmission Facilities:

Transmission line length 9km

Voltage level 220 kV, Double circuit

1% PROJECT KEY DATES

The key dates for the project details are listed in the table below:

: 2™ Falgun 2064 (14 Feb 2008)
:10™ Baisakh 2070 (23 Apr 2013)

: 6t Kartik 2075 (23 Oct 2018)

: 25t Falgun 2071 {09 Mar 2015)
:22M Jestha 2074 {05 Jun 2017)

: 26 Poush 2073 (10 Jan 2017)
14t Mangsir 2075 {30 Nov 2018)

: 24 Mangsir 2075 (10 Dec 2018)

: 27" Magh 2075 (10 Feb 2019)

: 29% Chaitra 2074 (12 Apr 2018)

: 26' Ashad 2076 (11 July 2019)

715t Bhadra, 2076 (18 Aug 2019)

: 7™ Poush 2076 (23 Dec 2019)

: 25" Jestha, 2076 (07 June 2020)

: 29" Aashad 2078 (13 July 2021)
119t Ashoj 2078 (05 October 2021)
: 26t Bhadra 2080 (11 September 2023)
115" Falgun 2080 {27 February 2024)

Survey License to SHEPL

ElA approval

SElA approval for 7MW

Grid Connection Agreement

Generation license received

Power Purchase Aggreement for 54 MW (PPA}
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) for additional 20.9 MW
Generation License received for 73 MW
Financial Closure

Main Civil Contract

Hydro-mechanical Contract

ToR Approval for 220 kV TL Project
Electro-mechanical Contract

Transmission Line Contract

IEE Approval for 220 kV TL Project
Construction License received for 220 kv TL
Required Commercial Operation Date

Revised Required Commercial Operation Date

1.5 MAJOR CONTRACT PACKAGES

Five different contract packages have been prepared for the Project's implementation,

S5.N. Package Contract Name Company name . Date of Award
1. |Package| Main Civil Works Zhejiang First Hydro & Power
Construction Group Co., Pvt. Ltd., April 12,2018
Hangzhou, China
2. |Packagell |Hydro-mechanicaliMachhapuchhre Metal and Machinery Julv 1. 2019
IWorks Works Pvt. Ltd., Nepal y 1k
3. |Packagelll Electro-mechanical Chongging Water and Turbine Work Co.
ber 23, 2019
IWorks Pvt. Ltd., Chongging, China December 23,
4, |Package IV  Transmission Line Cosmic Electrical Engineering Associates
‘Works Pvt. Ltd., Nepal June?7,2020

Besides, contract for preconstruction and preparatory works was awarded to Bavari Construction Pvt. Ltd.

Il st anffes ararorian (sn.a. 20ee/oco) |l



4 /—‘w\
fanma

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd.

2 PROGCRESS UPDATE

The Engineer: Sanima Hydro and Engineering Private Limited (SHEPL) has been consistently overseeing
the construction progress across Main Civil Works, Hydro-Mechanical Works, Electro-Mechanical Works, and
Transmission Line Works at the Project site. The work progress achieved by the Project to date is described
below.

2.1 PRE-CONSTRUCTION WORKS
2.1.1 ACCESS ROAD

A fully functional earthen access road, approximately 20 km in length, has been established leading to the
construction site from the Mechi Highway junction (located at Bahanande). The majority of the access road
sections have been built by the Project, which also involved upgrading existing village roads. The access
road consists two river crossings: one at the Powerhouse location and another at the Headworks location. An
alternative road route from Mitlung to Thumba, along with the installation of an additional Bailey bridge at
Budidaha, is fully operational, with occasional maintenance efforts. The management remains fully cautious
and prepared for any potential disruptions in transportation that may occur in monsoon season on the
access roads.

21.2 CAMP FACILITIES

The construction of camp facilities in both the Headworks area (referred to as Simle Camp) and the
Powerhouse area (known as Lorindin Camp) has been successfully completed, in accordance with the final
phase plan. In Simle Camp, eight buildings have been constructed, and in Lorindin Camp, four buildings
have been completed. Additionally, an Army Camp and Bunker at Sisne, situated near the Headworks, are
operational, with regular maintenance and cleaning being carried out, but no major maintenance work has
been required thus far.

2.1.3 CONSTRUCTION POWERLINE

The Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) Substation (S/S) located at Phungling (Hiti) in Taplejung, which is
connected to the national grid, has been the primary power source for the Project's construction. This power
is delivered via a dedicated line originating from the nearby Hiti S/S, making it the most convenient source
for the Project area.

The power requirements for the Project's construction, taking into account the load demands at the
headworks, Adit-1, and the powerhouse, have been estimated at approximately 1.7 MVA. To transmit this
power, a 17 km long 33 kV construction power line (currently operating at 11 kV) has been constructed,
extending from the Hiti substation to both the powerhouse area and the headworks area. This construction
power line has been operational since Mangsir 13, 2075 and has been maintained with minor interventions
as needed.

2.2 MAIN CIVIL WORKS

The Contract for the Main Civil Works was awarded
to Zhejiang First Hydro and Power Construction
Group Co. Ltd,, China (referred to as Ist Hydro). The
construction of the Main Civil Works commenced in
March 2019, following the acquisition of the generation
¥ license and the successful financial closure achieved in
February 2019.

At present, the Main Civil Contractor has completed
the concreting activities at the major civil structures
; : within the headworks, powerhouse and underground
Figure 2 I: Construction of new residential camp tunnel network, including the weir, stilling basin,
building at the powerhouse
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undersluice, intake, intake canal, gravel trap, conveyance tank, head race pipe, settling basins, surge shaft,
powerhouse main building, and tailrace section. Additionally, construction work is ongoing for remaining
components, which include the valve house, concreting works of the approach tunnel, and the bulkhead
gate region.

2.2.1 HEADWORKS

The Main Civil Contractor carried out concreting works at the headworks fronts through a number of Nepali
sub-contractors and most of the structures have already been constructed. The construction of the weir,
stilling basin, and the downstream floodwall has been successfully completed in June 2023, Additionally, the
construction of the undersluice and the intake, two of the most crucial hydraulic structures of the Project,
have been completed in February 2023, along with the construction of the fish ladder.

Furthermore, the completion of construction of the Intake canal was achieved in March 2023 with the gravel
trap being completed in July 2023. In addition, the construction of upstream (u/s) floodwall has also been
completed. Most notably, the first water filling test at the headworks was carried successfully on August 01,
2023. The construction of the conveyance tank has been completed. In the case of approach pipe encasing,
the concreting works are going on simultaneously with the laying of approach pipes. Whilst most of the
concrete casing of the approach pipes of the surface region has been completed, the concreting works for
the underground portion (inside inlet tunnel) is in the final stages and is scheduled to be completed by the
mid of January 2024. Moreover, the construction of headworks control building is also in the final stage of
completion and will be made ready by the stipulated schedule.

2.2.1.1 INTAKE AND GRAVEL TRAP

The construction of the intake structure as well as gravel trap has been completed as of July 2023, with
approximately 8,178 m3 of concrete poured in the intake region and approximately 4,808.93 m3 of concrete
poured in the gravel trap. Furthermore, the construction of the intake canal was successfully finalized in
March 2023, with the pouring of approximately 2,704.64 m3 of concrete within the intake canal region.

2.2.1.2 WEIR AND STILLING BASIN

The construction of the stilling basin was successfully completed in May 2022, and the completion of the
main body of the weir, in June 2022. Particularly, a considerable volume of concrete was poured in these
structures: approximately 17,342 m3 for the weir, 10,848 m? for the stilling basin, and 2,096 m? for the upstream
slab and cutoff. In total, a significant 30,086 m?* of concrete was used for the construction of the weir and
stilling basin section. The curtain grouting works at the upstream slab of the weir and undersluice bed have
already been completed, adding to the progress of the project.

Additionally, a small portion of the left bank floodwall, situated over the crest of the weir, has also been
constructed. With the plugging of the weir openings being completed, the water filling test of the headworks
region has been successfully conducted on August 01, 2023 by shutting down of all six intake gates and both
the radial gates of undersluice. With this, a remarkable milestone of the Project has been achieved.

Figure 2.2: Aerial view of Headworks from the downstream (left) and A view of gravel trap and
conveyance tank from upstream (right)
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2.21.3 UNDERSLUICE

The construction of the undersluice has been successfully completed as of February 2023, along with the
construction of the fish ladder. Throughout the construction process, approximately 19,327 m3 of concrete

Figure 2.3: An aerial view of weir with flow over the ogee crest (left} and Current view of headworks
(right)

2.2.1.4 CONVEYANCE TANK

The construction of conveyance tank has been accomplished in June 2023. Up to the present date,
approximately 8,022 m3 of concrete has been poured at the conveyance tank region. The completion of
conveyance tank marks a substantial progress achieved by the Project at the headworks region.

2.21.5 APPROACH PIPE

The concrete works at the approach pipe section, situated outside the inlet portal have already been
completed in June 2023 up to the bend, whilst the concrete encasing works of the approach pipe section
inside the tunnel is in progress. Out of the total length of the approach pipe, which is 282 meters, the Hydro-
Mechanical Contractor has already laid out around 220 meters of pipe up to the inlet portal. Additionally,
more than 210 meters of the approach pipe section located outside inlet portal has been encased in concrete.
As of the current date, approximately 3,595 m3 of concrete has been poured for the approach pipe section,
which contributed to approximately 65% of the total concreting work planned for this area.

To sum up, the overall physical progress achieved at the headworks region is approximately 28%. The major
construction works of the headworks region has been completed as of July 2023.

Figure 2.4: A view of conveyance tank (left) and Approach pipes installation completed upto inlet portal (right)
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222 UNDERGROUNDS WORKS

The progress in tunnel excavation faced significant challenges due to the outbreak of COVID-19, which led
to transportation difficulties, a shortage of explosives, and the deployment of government security agencies.
The departure of Chinese workers from Nepal due to the pandemic prompted the Main Civil Contractor to
continue the excavation of the Headrace Tunnel (HRT} and surge shaft through Nepali sub-contractors while
implementing strict health and safety measures. The excavation and rock support work at the settling basin
sites were also carried out by a Nepali subcontractor in an effort to mitigate the impact of the evacuation of
Chinese workers and the COVID-19 pandemic, although the resulting delay was inevitable.

Despite these challenging circumstances, a significant achievement was reached as the breakthrough
of the Headrace Tunnel {(HRT) occurred on July 15, 2022. Additionally, the challenging task of completing
the concrete lining works for the 80-meter-deep surge shaft and the full concrete lining works for the HRT
has been accomplished. The excavation works for the flushing tunnel network have also been successfully
completed. Most notably, the construction of the Settling basins, considered the most challenging aspect
of the project, has been successfully completed in December 2023. Presently, most resources are dedicated
towards the concrete lining of the approach tunnel to the Settling basins from the inlet region and the
construction of outlet gate shafts. The vertical sections of the underground works; inlet and outlet gate shafts
and flushing gate shafts are in the final stages of construction.

Regardless of the disruptions caused by the pandemic and occasional rock overbreaks in the caverns,
leading to extensive and time consuming repair and maintenance, significant progress has been made in
the underground works. Approximately 99% of the entire underground network has been excavated with
about 6,615 meters of the total tunnel network excavated to date out of 6,626 meters.

2221 APPROACH/INLET PORTAL

The length of Approach Tunnel 01, 02 and 03 is 186.33 meters, 148.17 m, and 166.50 m respectively which
includes a 35-meter inlet transition zone in each. The excavation of Approach Tunnel 01 was successfully
completed on February 11, 2020, covering a distance of 151.26 meters, The length of approach tunnel 02 is
14817 m including 35 m long inlet transition zone 02. The excavation of all three approach tunnels has been
completed in the month of February, 2020. The final lining shotcrete and rock bolt installation have already
been carried out in all three sections of Approach Tunnels. Further, the final support measures have already
been implemented in all three tunnels. This involved the installation of 50-75 mm thick shotcrete {sprayed
concrete) and the placement of rock bolts. To provide the necessary structural integrity, a final layer of steel-
reinforced shotcrete, 150 mm thick, has been applied. In addition to these, the concrete lining at the invert
and walls of the Approach tunnel 02 has been completed where is in final stage of completion in Approach
tunnels 01 and O3.

2.2.2.2 SETTLING BASINS

There are three settling basin bays in MTHP each 150 meters long, which includes a 35-meter-long inlet
transition zone and a 15-meter-long outlet transition zone. The dimensions of the settling basin are 135
meters in width and 17.5 meters in height. The excavation of all three large settling basin caverns has been
successfully completed on November 2023, with a total excavation volume of approximately 20,000 m3.

The Contractor has already completed grouting works at the crown along with the final rock bolts installation
and shotcrete application. Most notably, the concrete lining works at all three Settling Basin bays have been
completed including inlet transition, main bay (hoppers, pier and walls} and outlet transition by December
2023, With this, the Contractor has completed the excavation and concreting works in all three settling basin
bays. As of now, the concreting works are going on simultaneously in the approach tunnels and are expected
to be completed by the second week of January.
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Quitlet gate shafts
01,02 and 03

Settling Basins
01, 02 and 03

— Inlet gate shafts

; 1
nspection 01,02 and 03

tunnel 02

Inspection
tunnel 02

Connecting tunnels
Approach tunnels 01, 02 and 03

|\ Flushing tunnel
01, 02 and 03

Inspection
tunnel 01

Figure 2.5: Schematic view of settling basins and Figure 2.6: Schematic view of settling basins and
associated tunnel network associated tunnel network

Figure 2.7: A view of rebar layout and concreting works at SB 01

Figure 2.8: A view of SB 02 after the completion of concreting works (left) and a view of approach
tunnel 02 (right)
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2.2.2.3 CONNECTING TUNNELS FROM SETTLING BASIN TO HRT

Three number of connecting tunnels connects each settling basin bays at the outlet transition region to
the head race tunnel. All three tunnels meet at the 0+000 chainage of the HRT at the junction point of HRT
with the Adit tunnel. The concreting works on this front has also been completed in October 2023. With this,
completion in one of the most challenging work fronts at the head race tunnel region has been achieved.

2.2.2.4 SETTLING BASIN: INLET/OUTLET GATE SHAFT

The Settling Basin consists of 3 inlet gate shafts at the junction of each approach tunnel with respective
settling basins and 3 outlet gate shafts at the junction of each connecting tunnel with the settling basins.
The Main Civil Contractor has completed the excavation works of the inlet gate shafts for all three settling
basins. Further, the concrete works for SB 03 inlet gate shaft has already been completed as of December
2023, whereas, the concrete works for the inlet gates for SB 01, and SB 02 are in the final stage of construction
and are scheduled to be completed soon.

Regarding the construction of outlet gate shafts, the excavation works and concreting works shall be carried
out simultaneously and are scheduled to be completed by the end of January 2024.

2.2.2.5 HEADRACE TUNNEL (HRT)

The headrace tunnel, which spans a length of 3,367
meters, features an excavation size of 6.5 meters by 6.5
meters. It serves as a connecting passage that links
the Connecting tunnels with the penstock pipe at the
outlet region. A significant milestone was achieved
with the breakthrough of the headrace tunnel on July
15, 2022, occurring at a chainage of 1+54537 meters
from the tunnel's starting point. This breakthrough
represents a significant accomplishment in the
construction of the tunnel. About 154537 m was
excavated from Adit-O1in the Headrace Tunnel section

up to the breakthrough point whereas about 1,824.59 Figure 2.10: Full lining concrete at connecting
m was excavated from outlet site. tunnel junction

The full lining concreting works at the HRT have been successfully completed as of November 2023, covering
the entire section, including the connecting tunnel to the Surge shaft and the connecting tunnels leading to
each settling basin bay. In addition, the final shotcrete works has been successful completed throughout the
length of the HRT by December 2023. Presently, the final inspection of HRT has already begun and cleaning
works are also being carried out simultaneously. Currently, the focus has shifted towards the construction of
bulkhead gate region {the junction of adit tunnel and HRT), which is the final work to be carried out at the

Figure 2.11: A section of HRT with concrete full lining from the adit region (left) and A completed section
of rock trap (right)
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2.2.2.6 SEDIMENT FLUSHING TUNNELS AND FLUSHING GATE SHAFTS

The excavation of 475 meters long sediment flushing tunnel has been completed in February 2023. Likewise,
concrete lining works at the main flushing tunnel section along with its branches has been completed as of
December 2023. Till date the invert concreting works has already been completed throughout the flushing
tunnel network, whereas the full concrete lining works has been completed in 463 meters out of total 471
meters of flushing tunnel network.

Figure 2.12: A view of full concrete lining at the flushing tunnel (left) and Concreting works at flushing
shaft I'A’ (right)

2.2.2.7 FLUSHING GATE SHAFT

A large network of flushing tunnel and shaft functions as a structure to divert the sediments trapped in each
settling basin back to the river. Five number of flushing gate shafts, which are each about 25 meters high,
opens from inspection tunnel all the way to the flushing tunnel that lies below the settling basin level. Each
gate shafts comprises of operating and hoisting platform at the inspection tunnel and gates at the settling
basin outlet region. During flushing, the gates will open and the sediments shall flush from the flushing
tunnel network located below the settling basin level, all the way to flushing culvert which opens back to the
river near the HRT adit portal region.

The successful breakthrough of all five flushing gate shafts have been achieved. In addition to this, the
concreting works in 3 out of 5 flushing gate shafts have been completed. Presently, the concreting works of
flushing gate shafts O1 'B’ and 03 are being carried out simultaneously and is expected to be completed by
the second week of January 2024. Out of total 122.2 meters stretch of 5 vertical gate shafts, the concreting
works for approximately 93.3 meters have already been completed marking 73% construction completion
on this front.

2.2.2.8 SURGE SHAFT AND VENTILATION TUNNEL

The Project consists of an 80-meters high vertical tunnel with design diameter of 16.4 meters. The excavation
of the shaft was successfully completed as of June 2022 along with the application of temporary rock
supports. Further, the concreting works for the shaft was finalized as of January 31, 2023, along its depth of
approximately 80 meters. In addition, the full concrete lining works for the connecting tunnel that links the
Headrace Tunnel (HRT) to the Surge shaft has also been completed as of July 2023.

The excavation of ventilation tunnel of 199.7 m has been completed in the month of March 2020. The
ventilation tunnel opens at the crown level of the surge shaft and is located about 80 meters above the
HRT invert at the point. About 50-75 mm thick shotcrete and rock bolt have been installed in all sections of
ventilation tunnel as supports. The steel ribs have been installed as per site conditions.
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Figure 2.13: A view of full lining concrete at connecting tunnel (left) and the junction of connecting
tunnel and HRT (right)

2.2.3 POWERHOUSE AND PENSTOCK ALIGNMENT

To carry out excavation and concreting works at the Powerhouse area, the Main Civil Contractor, 1st Hydro,
employed Nepali workers through a Nepali sub-contractor company. The progress achieved up to the
present date includes the completion of concreting works at major structures within the Powerhouse area,
such as the powerhouse main building (along with control bay), manifold block, anchor block, switchyard
region, and the tailrace section, including all embedded concreting elements. Furthermore, the concreting
works are taking place at the penstock protection valve (PPV) house. The concreting works at this front are
expected to be completed by mid-January 2024.

2.2.3.1 PENSTOCK, ANCHOR BLOCKS AND SADDLE SUPPORT

The concreting works in the manifold region, including the necessary backfilling, have been successfully
completed. Further, all the associated penstock slope stabilization works using geo-synthetic composite
have been completed on the inclined section of the penstock on September 2023. The concrete works at
the saddle supports and the penstock foundation at this inclined section has also been completed along
with the penstock installation works inside the HRT. Moreover, the pouring of large portion of concrete in the
anchor block has also been completed as of December 2023.

The resources are now focused on the concreting works for the valve house located just outside of the
HRT outlet, and this work is progressing rapidly. As of the current date, a substantial amount of concrete,
exceeding 9,000.00 m3, has already been poured in the anchor block, saddle supports, PPV and manifold
region. Most of the civil structures have already been constructed at this region.

2.2.3.2 POWERHOUSE AND CONTROL BAY

The construction of the main powerhouse building, as well as the ground floor of the auxiliary powerhouse
building {control bay), has been successfully completed. Currently, the construction of the first floor of the
control bay is going on. A significant volume of concrete, approximately 10,920 m3, has been poured in the
powerhouse and control bay building, marking 95% construction completion at this region. The concrete
works for the generator casing of all four units have already been completed. Further, the front is currently
being utilized by the Electro-Mechanical Contractor for the wiring and cable laying works. Additionally,
various finishing works have been accomplished, including the completion of the roofing on the powerhouse,
cladding on the side walls, and the installation of doors and windows. Currently the painting work in the
interior walls of the powerhouse is being carried out.

2.2.3.3 VALVEHOUSE

The valve house, which houses the penstock protection valve (PPV), is located just outside the HRT outlet
portal. This structure is another crucial civil structure of the Project incorporating the PPV, along with electric
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overhead travelling (EOT) crane of 100-tons capacity, control panels, etc. The construction of the valve house
building is in full swing and is expected to be completed by the mid of January 2024. The civil construction
works up to the crane beam level has been completed and necessary preparation for EOT crane installation
is being made.

2.2.3.4 TAILRACE CHAMBER, TAILRACE FLOODWALL AND TAILRACE CULVERT

The tailrace section of the project comprises the tailrace chamber, tailrace culvert, and tailrace floodwall.
The construction of the tailrace floodwall along with the tailrace chamber and tailrace culvert has been
completed as of November 2022. Approximately 3,374 m3 of concrete has been poured in the tailrace region.

2.2.3.5 SWITCHYARD

The Main Civil Works Contractor has successfully completed the civil works for the switchyard region along
with the backfilling works, construction of retaining walls and transformer foundation. In addition, the Electro-
Mechanical Contractor has already carried out the erection works of various Electro-Mechanical works at the
switchyard region. The installation of towers parts, and other accessories of the switchyard, commenced
from the last week of September, has been completed as of December 2023. Further, the necessary drain
and cable trench have already been constructed, where the EM Contractor is currently carrying out the final
wire and cable assembly.

Overall, the construction works of main powerhouse building has been completed along with the switchyard
and tailrace region, whereas, the progress is about 92% along the penstock alignment (including manifold,
anchor block and saddle supports).

Figure 2.15: A view of switchyard with 4 power transformers positioned (left) and construction of anchor
block and valve house (right)
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1 d AR P e T - Y
Figure 2.16: Anchor block and PPV region (left)and Interior view of powerhouse auxiliary building (right)

23 HYDRO-MECHANICAL WORKS

The Hydro-mechanical (HM} works contract was awarded to Machhapuchhre Metal and Machinery Works
(P) Ltd, and these works commenced in August 2019, starting from the headworks of the construction area.

The fabrication of steel pipes at headworks (approach pipes) and powerhouse (penstock pipes, bifurcation
and branch pipes) has been completed whereas, the fabrication of various gates and stop logs is being
carried out at the Contractor’s workshop at the Project site and at Pokhara workshop. The installation of
approach pipes has been completed up to inlet portal bend at the headworks region. About 88 out of 96
approach pipes already erected, covering the expansion joint at the conveyance tank up to the anchor block.
The installation of penstock pipes has been completed throughout the penstock alignment. Installation of
all penstock pipes along the penstock alignment has been completed having varied thicknesses (32mm,
30mm, 28mm, 25mm, 20mm, and 18mm).

All associated steel lining works has been completed in the undersluice region, intake and bed-load sluice
region along with embedded parts. The erection of both the radial gates and hoisting mechanisms has been
completed, whereas the installation of stoplog along with gantry mechanism. The erection of all 6 vertical
gates along with the hoisting mechanism has been completed. Similarly, the erection of all 6 trash racks
completed at the Intake along with embedded parts of Trash Rack Cleaning Machine (TRCM), and railing
at the top slab of the intake has also been completed. The erection of gates and stop log frames at the
different locations of the settling basin (settling basin inlet gates, outlet gates and flushing gates) is ongoing
according to the Civil Contractor work schedule. Similarly, necessary preparation for the erection of gravel
flushing gates and stoplog has also been completed.

The trash rack frames erection at the conveyance tank has been completed. The installation for all three
bifurcation units, including associated reducers, bends, and branch pipes has been completed at the
manifold region. Further, the concreting of the manifold region has been completed. The fabrication and
installation completed for all four-unit diffusers. This update highlights substantial progress in the HM works
and the achievement of key milestones across various sections of the project.
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2.3.1 APPROACH PIPES
Detail of work progress of Approach pipes

Total

Pa.rtlculars Thickness Number Length Length of N?' of Progress Progress
N. Diameter trmi) of pipes of each tactlon pipes A et % Status
(m) shell (m) installed
_ _ _ ml _
1 45 16 mm pipe 88 25 220 88 | 220 100%
16 mm .
2 45 pipe (Cut 1 116 116 1 116 o0% | Outside
Piece-01) Approach
- 1 - i Tunnel (All
16 mm Complete)
3 45 pipe (Cut 1 12 12 1 12 100%
Piece-02)
Inside
4 4.5 16 mm pipe n 25 275 0 0 0% Approach
Tunnel
16 mm Inside
5 45 pipe (Cut 1 1.2 12 0 0 0% Approach
Piece-03} Tunnel

Overall, the erection of 88 numbers of pipes has been completed along with welding and testing works. The
fabrication of pipe for approach tunnel have been completed and erection will start once the Civil Contractor
provide the work front. One remaining bend shall be erected at the end after the completion of all associated

concrete works of approach tunnel.
- 5 .

A ~
Figure 2.17:Erection of trashrack frame and gate embedded parts at SB Outlet Gate-3 (left) and
installation of head race bend (right)

2.3.2 PENSTOCK PIPES

The Hydro-mechanical (HM) Contractor has made significant progress in the erection of penstock pipes
with various thicknesses at the penstock alignment. In total, the HM Contractor has successfully erected
all penstock pipes covering a range of thicknesses from 32mm down to 18mm at the inclined section of
the Penstock. The Contractor completed the installation of transition pipe (bell mouth) at the HRT outlet
region on August 24, 2023. The bell mouth acts as a transition of waterway form Inverted-D to circular shape.
The installation of penstock pipes located inside HRT has already completed in October. This achievement
marks a significant milestone in the installation of the penstock pipes. In addition, the Employer has begun
the final inspection and testing of the hydro-mechanical components through a third party Consultant's
engagement for quality assurance.
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Table 2 1: Detail of work progress of Penstock Pipes and other pipes at the penstock alignment
Particulars Total

Length No. of
SN Diameter Tickness Sornoer ofeach I ppes PO POTI  g
(m) {(mm) PIPES shell (m) my | instalied
A Penstock inside tunnel
1 45 16 mm pipe 39 25 975 39 975 100% Completed
16 mm pipe
. i
2 4.5 (Bend) 2 2 100% Completed
16 mm bioe This will be
3 | 45 cut ich) 0.9 09 0 0 0%  done while
P lerecting PPV|
Total 42 98.4 41 975 99%
B Inclined section
16 mm pipe
1 45 (Bend) 3] 3] 100% Completed
2 45 18 mm pipe 4 25 10 4 10 100% Completed
3 45 20 mm pipe n 25 275 n 275 100% Completed
4 45 22 mm pipe 6 25 15 6 15 100% Completed
Cut piece 1 125 1.25 1 1.25 100% Completed
5 45 25 mm pipe 9 25 225 Q 225 100% Completed
o 45 28 mm pipe B 25 20 8 20 100% Completed
7 45 30 mm pipe 7 25 175 7 175 100% Completed
g 4.5 2 mm pipe &6 25 15 6 15 12095 Completed _
36 mm pipe
10 4, 100% C leted
5 (Bend) omplete
Total 58 128.75 58 128.75 100%
C Manifold block
1 39 30 mm pipe 1 25 25 1 25 100% Completed
30mm cut 1 247 247 1 247 100%  Completed
piece
2 318 25 mm pipe 1 25 25 1 25 100% Completed
t
25 mm cu 1 176 176 1 176 100%  Completed
piece
3 225 20 mm pipe 16 25 40 6 40 100% Completed
4 200 20 mm pipe 22 25 5318 21 525 99% ! pl?cg
remaining
22510 20 mm pipe
1 let
> | 200 (Reducer) 00% | Completed
Total | 46 102.41 4] 101.73 99%
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Figure 2.18: Erection of penstock pipes (left) and the PPV location (right)

233 ADDITIONAL WORKS

In addition to the previously mentioned progress, a significant advancement has been made by adding
flushing pipes at the weir section. Each flushing pipe unit has a length of 15.76 meters, and there are a
total of 2 units of the weir flushing pipes. Both the fabrication and erection of the flushing pipes have
been successfully completed. Similarly, pipe of diameter 4.0 m and length 10.9m has been erected at the
Adit Junction and fabrication of that pipe (Nos 4.5) has been completed and once the site is provided, the
erection work will start. The fabrication of hold-down-straps, a bracing mechanism for further protection of
the penstock pipes, has already begun and will be installed soon.

As a comprehensive summary, the overall physical progress achieved in the hydro-mechanical works of the

Project is approximately 90%. The completion of key milestones, such as manifold, approach pipes, radial

gates, intake gates, demonstrates the project's steady progression towards its completion.
A

Figure 2.19: Erection of radial gate at undersluice (left) and erection of embedded part of gate and
stoplog at SBF-3 (right)

2.4 ELECTRO-MECHANICAL WORKS

The Electro-Mechanical (EM) works for the MTHP are being carried out by an experienced Chinese company:
Chongqing Water Turbine Works Co. Ltd. (CWTW). Their responsibilities span the entire electro-mechanical
aspect, encompassing the design, fabrication, assembly, supply, and installation of all relevant components
from the end of the penstock to the pickup gantry of the switchyard accommmodating four units of vertical
Francis turbine with all corresponding generating units, control and protection systems, battery backups,
internal power consumption transformers, power transformers, excitation transformers, SCADA and
communication system as per NEA's grid code requirements, the overhead crane, Penstock protection valve
(PPV), and main-inlet valves (MIV) for each unit feeding penstock.
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The mobilization of manpower and resources for installation works of Electro-mechanical equipment
commenced officially on February 09, 2021. Due to COVID-19's impact, the EM Contractor, being a Chinese
company, encountered challenges in mobilizing their national workers at the site. To address this, they
engaged a Nepali subcontractor, JADE Consultant, who smoothly carried out installation works for various
parts.

Electromechanical Work progress summary

Overall Progress
S.N. Particulars till date Status Remarks
A Overall Electro-
mechanical 94% In Progress
Works
1 Contract signing 100% Completed a. Contract awarded on 23rd December 2019

b. Design works completed

- a. Majoreguipment Generator/ Turbine/
Fabrication of
2 . 100% Completed | Transformer/ MIV completed
eguipment
b. Overall completed

a.All Generator/Turbine including its accessories
delivered to site

b. The 13th shipment containing PPV and

3 Import/ Delivery 95% In Progress| communication system has already departed
from Biratnagar and being delivered to the
Project site

c. Approximately 95% completed

a. Generator installation completed in all four units
b. Turbine installation completed in all four units
Installation 95% In Progress |c. MIV installation completed in all four unit
d.Cable laying isin final stage

e. PPV installation is remaining

CWTW has completed all associated fabrication works. This incorporates the design, fabrication, and testing
of vital equipment like generator sets, runners, and shafts. To date, around 95% of the equipment has already
been delivered, consisting turbine parts, generator components, control panels, cables, Electric Overhead
Travel (EOT) crane and accessories, switchyard equipment and PPV accesscries, and more. Regarding
the delivery of the EM equipment, the 13th shipment consisting crucial components like the PPV and
communication system have been dispatched from Birathagar customs and is currently being transported
to the Project site.

N

To date, the overall progress achieved by the Project in EM works is approximately 24%.

241 MANUFACTURING WORKS

The majority of the manufacturing works for the Electro-Mechanical equipment have been successfully
completed at various factories in China. All turbine and generator sets, including spare runners, are
currently in the final stage of installation. Overall, all the required Electro-Mechanical equipment have been
manufactured. While the majority of the Electro-Mechanical equipment have been successfully delivered
while the transformers and the PPV valve are in the process of being delivered to the Project site.
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242 INSTALLATION WORKS

The Electro-Mechanical installation works are ongoing at a rapid pace after the completion of the powerhouse
by the Civil Contractor. The installation of embedded parts and pipes for the turbine and generator has been
aligned with the civil work, serving as the foundation for further EM activities. Additionally, the EOT crane
installation, commissioning, and load testing, a crucial Electro-Mechanical milestone, have been successfully
carried out. As of now around 95% of installation work has been completed.

S o // 2 \\ / —
4 Unit 1 \' Unit 2 \ ‘/Unit 3 Unit 4 g
¢ Turbine * Turbine <+ Turbine *» Turbine
Installation- 100% Installation- 100% Installation- 100% Installation- 100%
< Generator < Generator < Generator < Generator
installation-100% installation-100% instaliation-100% | installation-100%
< Accessories *>* Accessories < Accessories «»* Accessories

installation-95% installation-95% installation-90% installation-85%

2.4.2]1 EOT CRANE INSTALLATION

Upon the completion of roofing work in Bay 1, the electrical commissioning of the crane was conducted.
The crane's functionality was thoroughly tested as it was driven from Bay 1 to Bay 5 at different speed levels,
with a careful check of safety measures and connections. An essential step in validating the EOT (Electric
Overhead Travel) crane's capabilities involved a successful load test, where a 66-ton dummy load was lifted
to verify the crane's load capacity.

2.4.2.2 TURBINES AND GENERATORS INSTALLATION

The final installation of the turbine and generator has been successfully completed by mounting excitation
system, the last component starting from bottom to vertically upwards. This complex process was carried
out precisely, ensuring the GBT standards of machine safety and efficiency. One of the preliminary steps,
the High Voltage Tests were carried out with both the stator and rotor of the generator as per GBT standard
to verify their electrical insulation and safety. These tests ensure the generator's capability to withstand
the high electrical loads efficiently. The turbine guide bearing (TGB) oil tank, Lower guide bearing (LGB) oil
tank, combination of upper guide bearing (UGB) and thrust bearing oil tank underwent thorough kerosene
leakage tests to ensure that these crucial components are free from any potential leaks.

The rotor braking mechanism and the cooling system of the LGB and UGB went through comprehensive
pressure test to guarantee their reliability during operation. Ensuring that these systems can withstand the
required pressures is vital for overall system safety. Various sensors and instruments are mounted to the
turbine and generator to monitor and control their performance. These accessories play a crucial role in
ensuring the efficient and safe operation of the system. The power and control cables are being carefully laid
and connected to the generator and associated control systems.

2.4.2.3 MAIN INLET VALVE

All 4 units of the Main Inlet Valve have been successfully lowered into their respective positions. The
downstream side welding of Unit 1 to Unit 4 is now completed. Meanwhile erection and welding works of
bypass from Unit 1to Unit 4 are ongoing, along with the erection and welding of the cut piece joining the
Main Inlet Valve and Penstock of Unit 1, Unit 2, and Unit 3 at the upstream side have been now completed.

m [l] et anfifes wrEmRUREaEn (3.8, Q0e’/0co) ||



anfho.
amuma Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd.

Figure 2.20: Rotor and stator coupling in unit 01 (left) and final installation of water guide mechanism
along with monitoring sensors (right)

Figure 2.22: Rotor lowering in unit 4 (left) and assembly of runner with main shaft (right)

Figure 2.23; Rotor lowering of unit 04 (left) and Unit 02 MIV valve assembly and erection (right)
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2.4.2.4 CONTROL ROOM

The installation of all the embedded parts, pipes, ventilation fans, control panels, cable support bracket and
auxiliary transformer of the control roorn have been completed and now the laying, dressing and termination
work of power and control cables are ongoing.

Figure 2.24; Laying of control cables in control room (left) and laying of power and control cables in 1TkV
switchgear room (right)

2.4.25 SWITCHYARD AND VALVEHOUSE

Laying of earthing flats, embedded parts and pipes in switchyard as well as valve house simultaneously
completed with the Main Civil works. Erection of gantry tower and other equipment posts are being ready in
switchyard while valve house work is rapidly progressing.

Figure 2.25: Erection of gantry towers and final assembly of Transformer at switchyard
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Figure 2.26: Power transformers placed at its position (left) and unloading of power
transformers at the switchyard region (right)

2.5 TRANSMISSION LINE WORKS

For the construction of a 9 km long, 220 kv D/C transmission line, a contract was signed with Cosmic
Electrical Engineering Associates Private Limited on June 07, 2020. This transmission line consists of 25
towers and originates from the switchyard of the Middle Tamor Hydropower Project, connecting with the
interconnecting bay of the Dhunge-Sanghu sub-station in Taplejung, a Project being constructed by NEA as
per the Connection Agreement.

The construction progress thus far has been substantial, with significant milestones being achieved, along
with foundation concreting and stub erection completed at all 25 locations. Likewise, tower erection has
been accomplished at 24 sites and ongoing at remaining 1 location i.e. AP17, approximately equivalent to
96% of the total erection works, The current focus of the Contractor centers on the stringing works for the
transmission line conductor, following initial right-of-way clearance. Substantial progress has already been
rmade with the stringing process completed from AP24 to AP18, AP13 to APQI. As of this date, the Contractor
has completed more than 7.5 km of conductor stringing out of 9 km.

As per the Connection Agreement, power generated from Middle Tamor Hydropower Project has to be
evacuated at Dhungesanghu substation. Currently 132 kV systemn at Dhungesanghu sub-station is near

completion, however it has to be
DL AR HYDROFOUER FROJECT A upgraded to a 220 kV system to
— ' —4  be compatible with the power
evacuation arrangement of MTHP.
However, this upgradation is yet to
be started by the NEA. This concern
was raised during various meetings
ofthe coordination committee with
NEA, where it has been proposed
to establish a contingency
arrangement until 220 kV system
is built at Dhungesanghu sub-
station. This alternative evacuation
arrangement involves the stringing
of the second circuit from the
Dhungesanghu substation to the

e
Nk i Plural Murespa it Prenghey VOC-Phunging Mussipaitios

VT and Rammakes VOC- Meindin Rucal Muricipaises: Changs YTC- At Rural Musicipaities
D o VDG Wil Rural Mo fel b

Figure 2.27: Transmission line route map
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Basantapur substation and an interconnection bay at Basantapur sub-station. This circuit will operate at 220
kV and will be exclusively dedicated to the Middle Tamor Hydropower Project for power evacuation to 220 kv
bay at Basantapur sub-station. The Contract for stringing of the second circuit and the construction of the
bay has already been awarded by NEA to a Contractor. The required manpower and equipment have already
been deployed to the site by the Contractor and the construction of the bay is going on in a satisfactory pace.

The power evacuation of the MTHP entirely depends on the completion ofthe above mentioned contingency
arrangementand NEA hasinformed Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd.that the alternativearrangement
is anticipated to be completed by February 27, 2024. Therefore, the RCOD of the Project will be aligned
with the completion of the aforementioned contingency evacuation arrangement of 220 kV transmission
line from the Basantapur to Dhungesanghu Substation on February 27, 2024 and its construction is being
closely monitored by SMTHL

251 CONSTRUCTION WORKS

The Contractor has successfully finalized the foundation works and tower erection in all 25 tower locations.
The current status of the transmission line project progress is detailed in the provided table. Additionally,
the Contractor has accomplished the stringing works from AP24 to AP18 and from AP13 to AP1 continuing
up to pick up gantry, resulting in approximately 7.5 kilometers of the conductor being strung, constituting
about 83% completion of the total stringing work. Negotiations for the clearance of a number of Right of Way
(RoW) locations is still underway, which is expected to be resolved by the end of January 2024.

Table 2 2: Summary of Transmission Line works progress

Overall P
Tower Works Total | Completed g e iy
till date

A Overall Transmission Line Works 95% In Progress
1 Land Acquisition Works 25 25 Nos. 100% Completed
2 Tower Foundation Works 25 25 Nos. 100% Completed
3 Erection of Towers 25 24 Nos. 96% In Progress
4 Stringing Works 9 75 km 83% In Progress

This progress signifies a substantial step forward in the execution of the transmission line project. Overall, the
construction progress of the Transmission line works is about 95% and is in line with our revised commercial
operation date.

Figure 2.28: View of Conductor stringing from switchyard gantry to AP1 (left) and a view of stringing
works (right)
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Figure 2.29: Photographs showing stringing works (left) and erected last tower at AP24 and tower of
NEA (right)

2.6 FINANCIAL PROGRESS TO DATE

The total revised cost of the Middle Tamor Hydropower Project is estimated to be NPR 13,330,000,000 (In
words - NPR Thirteen Billion Three Hundred Thirty Million only). Within this project cost, the equity portion
amounts to NPR 3,332,500,000, while the necessary debt is NPR 9,996,800,000. The promoter's equity share,
representing 70% of the total equity (NPR 2,332,750,000), has been fully paid. Additionally, the public equity
share, constituting 30% of the total equity or NPR 999,750,000, has also been completely paid with an arrear
of 30 kittas of shares. The Company has been listed on the Nepal Stock Exchange with the stock symbol
of TAMOR'. The debt portion has been arranged through a consortium of 8 commmercial kbanks with Nepal
Investment Mega Bank Ltd. leading the effort.

Regarding the Contract amount, 85% has been disbursed to the Main Civil Contractor up to the present date
against the raised Interim Payment Certificates (IPCs) up to IPC 27 along with the expenditures made under
contingencies. Likewise, 83% of the Contract amount has been paid to the Hydro-Mechanical Contractor
(up to IPC 9), covering the design and procurement segment. The Employer has directly purchased all the
necessarysteel plates. Furthermore, 95% of the Contract amount has been provided to the Electro-Mechanical
Contractor, covering the supply portion's bills for dispatch up to the 13th lot of EM equipment following their
receipt on-site. Additionally, about 98% of the total Contract amount has been paid to the Transmission Line
(TL) Contractor, incorporating bills up to IPC#08, which also includes all additional variations and advance
payments.

Table 2 3: Financial Progress of Major Contract Packages Till Date

Major Contract Packages Expense till date (%) Remaining Budget (%)

Main Civil Works including contingencies 85% 15%
Hydro-Mechanical Works 83% 17%
Electro-Mechanical Works 95% 5%
Transmission Line Works 98% 2%

The total financial expenditure of the overall Project till date is about 89% out of the total project cost of
NPR. 13,330,000,000. In summary, the financial progress is in line with the physical progress achieved in the
Project to date.

3 CONCLUSION

In summary, the Middle Tamor Hydropower Project has made significant progress on all active fronts of
the construction. The Main Civil works are nearly 99% complete, while the completed portion of the Hydro-
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mechanical works is about 20%. Additionally, the progress in Electro-mechanical works is at 949%, and the
Transmission Line works are also at 95%. This demonstrates substantial advancements in multiple key areas
of the Project, despite the challenges faced, and reflects the dedication and efforts of all parties involved.

The construction faced unexpected geclogical issues during excavation of large caverns, limitations in cavern
excavation due to frequent overbreaks requiring continuous repairs in challenging sections, and an extended
tunnel excavation cycle, all of which affected the pace of work. In response to various challenges faced by
the Prgject, the Employer has provided additional support to the Contractors, including maobilizing extra
equipment such as boomers, batching plants, grouting machines, robotic shotcrete machines, generators,
trucks, excavators, loaders, concrete pumps, jackhammers, water pumps and rollers as well as addressing
their cash flow issues, In addition, on the recornmendation of the Engineer, the Employer had to take over
the actual construction works like shotcreting, rock bolts installation, penstock foundation, etc. through third
party interventions in order to expedite the construction to meet the operation deadline. The management
has been collaborating with various stakeholders, including the Engineer, Contractors, Subcontractors,
Suppliers, Transporters, and government authorities at various levels to keep the construction environment
smooth.

Obviously, the challenges posed by the global COVID-12 pandemic have had a significant impact on the
construction timeline of the Middle Tamor Hydropower Project. Furthermaore, the collapse of Hewa Khola
bridge linking Phidim and Hilihang along the Mechi Highway on June 18, 2023 led to a complete disruption of
all vehicular movement for almost a month, This, in turn, halted the transportation of construction materials
like rebars, cements, admixtures and explosives as well as the movement of manpower for several weeks.
During this period, the construction works at the site was being carried out using the construction materials
that were stocked at the Project site, and only a limited quantity of materials transported via. alternative
route. Unfortunately, the construction pace of the project was severely hindered during a critical phase of
the Project. Additionally, the supply of explosives to the project was disrupted due to India halting the supply.
This caused a disruption in the excavation works in critical areas such as settling basin benching, settling
basin gate shafts, and flushing gates shafts for over two months. While the project managed to gradually
arrange the required explosives through various alternative means in small quantities, the overall schedule
for the excavation works was significantly delayed.

Recognizing the unforeseen disruptions caused by the COVID pandemic, the collapse of the Hewa bridge,
the scarcity of explosives, extended treatment of geological overbreaks on the Settling Basins, and the
transmission line from Dhunge Sanghu to Basantapur (being developed by the NEA)} not being completed
within the earlier RCOD- which resulted in the contingency evacuation plan for power transmission of the
Prgject- the Employer, with the agreement of NEA, have extended the RCOD to mitigate the effects of the
ongoing crisis. With this extension, the RCOD of the Project has been renewed until February 27,2024 (Falgun
15, 2080) to align with the completion of the contingency evacuation arrangement of 220 kV transmission
line from Dhungesanghu to Basantapur S/. The Employer has been continuously monitoring the progress
in the evacuation arrangement being developed by the NEA and working proactively in achieving the
successful completion of this Project by the deadline.
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. Construction completion of all majer works

Construction Schedule of Middle Tamor Hydropower Project (MTHP)

. Finat assembly of HM and EM components
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Figure 3.1: Conctruction schedule of MTHP

Table 3 1: Work progress summary chart

Particulars Construction
Progress
1 |Main Civil Works including 99%
Contingency utilized
1.2 |Underground Works (HRT) 100%
1.3 |Underground Works (SB 98%
and others)
1.4 \Underground Works (Surge 100%
Shaft and ventilation)
1.5 |Powerhouse, Control bay 100%
and Tailrace
1.6 |Penstock and anchor block 95%
1.7 |General items 100%
2 |Hydro-mechanical Works 90%
3 |Electro-mechanical Works 94%
4 |Transmission Line Works 95%
5 |Infrastructure 99%
Development Works
Overall Physical Progress 98%
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This report summarizes the significant progress achieved by the Middle Tamor Hydropower Project across
multiple work fronts in the face of the challenges and construction hurdles. Despite the considerable
challenges brought about by the pandemic, the Middle Tamor Hydropower Project has achieved an
approximately 98% of the construction progress to date. Although the original goals were impacted due to
the pandemic and extension of RCOD became unavoidable, the progress made in these challenging times
is satisfactory and is in line with the revised RCOD of the Project. Currently, special attention has been given
to outlet gate shafts construction, approach pipe installation, and smooth supply of construction materials
during this critical phase of Project so as to achieve the targeted milestone of the revised RCOD.

GALLERY

Aerial view of undersluice, intake and Connecting tunnels junction point
gravel trap
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Aerial view of valve house, anchorblock Rotor assembly at service bay
and penstock pipes
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W

Aerial view of Headworks from
downstream

anm 1
Water inundation on the weir upstream area

A view of intake from downstream Approach pipes installation at Headworks
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A view of connecting tunnel at Surge shaft A view of HRT near adit junction area

A view of Surge shaft from bottom Concrete lining at Flushing gate shaft
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Shotcreting at HRT using Robotic shotcrete Shotcreting at HRT using Robotic shotcrete
machine machine

2

Transportation of Power Transformers)

Valve house construction Transformer final assembly at switchyard
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Conduction of health camp at the Project Meeting with MTHP Coordination Committee
affected communities for local shares

o

- . i e prm T, NS
Visit of district security committee to Visit of MOEWRI's secretary to Project site
Project site
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TN Misihrsse

Visit of SEBON officials to Project site Seventh Annual General Meeting of Sanima
Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd
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Sanima Hydro Group Staff, Head Office
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Transmission Line tower erectin Transmission Line tower erectin
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ead office, SMTHL

Employees working at the
_ : -

Employees working at the site office, Headworks SMTHL
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